
                                             City of Lemon Grove 
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, December 18, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 
 

Lemon Grove Community Center 
3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA 

 
The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District 

Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and 
Lemon Grove Successor Agency 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance:  Presentation of Colors and Pledge to be led by Boy Scout Troop #108. 

Changes to the Agenda: 

Item 2 to be heard out of order. 

2. Declaring the Results of the November 6, 2018, General Municipal Election Certified 
Results, and Induction and Administration of Oath of Office. 

Reference:  Shelley Chapel, City Clerk 
Recommendation:  Adopt a Resolution entitled, “A Resolution of the City of Lemon 
Grove, California, Recognition the Fact of the General Municipal Election 
Conducted on November 6, 2018, and Declaring the Results,” and Authorizing the 
City Clerk to Induct the re-elected City Councilmembers into Office by reciting the 
Oath of Office. 

Induction and Administration of Oath of Office of re-elected City Councilmembers to be 
carried out by City Clerk Shelley Chapel.    

Presentation: 
 
Mayor to Present Certificates of Appreciation to Boy Scout Troop 108. 
 
Mayor to Present Certificates of Appreciation to Miss Lemon Grove and her court. 
 
Reception: A brief reception to celebrate the induction of re-elected Councilmember Jennifer 
L. Mendoza and Councilmember Jerry Jones. 
 

Public Comment: 

(Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not 
scheduled on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. 
If appropriate, the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

1. Consent Calendar: 

(Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless 
removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public.) 

A. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda 

Reference:  James Lough, City Attorney 
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this 

agenda;  Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by 
title only. 



City of Lemon Grove City Council Meeting  December 18, 2018 
 
 
 

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands 

Reference:  Molly Brennan, Finance Director 
Recommendation:  Ratify Demands 

C. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
December 4, 2018 

 
Reference:  Shelley Chapel, City Clerk 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes 
 

D. Mayor Pro Tem Rotation 

Reference:  Lydia Romero, City Manager 
Recommendation:  Adopt a Resolution entitled, “A Resolution of the City Council 
of the City of Lemon Grove, California, Confirming the Rotation of 
Councilmember David Arambula to Serve as the Mayor Pro Tem for the  Period 
of December 18, 2018 through December 17, 2019, and Establishing the Mayor 
Pro Tem Rotation Schedule for the Subsequent Two Years.” 

E. Approval of the Local Appointments List Update for 2019 

Reference:  Shelley Chapel, City Clerk 
Recommendation:  Approve the Local Appointments List for 2019, and authorize 
the City Clerk to post the list at City Hall and on the City website, in compliance 
with Government Code 54972. 

F. Appointment of City Councilmembers to Committees, Commissions and Boards. 

Reference:  Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 
Recommendation:  Ratify City Council Appointments for 2019 as recommended 
by Mayor Vasquez.  

G. Approval of Final map for Tentative Map TM0061 located at 6800 Mallard Court 

Reference:  Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 
Recommendation:  Adopt a Resolution entitled, “A Resolution of the City Council 
of the City of Lemon Grove, California, Approving a Final Map for Tentative Map 
TM0061,” and authorize the City Clerk to accept the easements and on the Final 
Map. 
 

H. Approval of the Authorization of Application Submittal for the CalRecycle Beverage 
Container Recycling City/County Payment Program.  
 

Reference:  Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer 
Recommendation:  Adopt a Resolution entitled, “A Resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California, Approving the Authorization of 
Application Submittal for the CalRecycle Beverage Container Recycling 
City/County Payment Program,” and direct staff to submit the application to 
CalRecycle for any and all payment programs offered.” 

 



City of Lemon Grove City Council Meeting  December 18, 2018 
 
 
Public Hearing: 

3. Policy Review Ordinance No. 2018-450, a request to consider Zoning Amendment ZA1-
800-0002 Separation Findings for Discretionary Permit. 

The City Council will consider a resolution amending Section 17.28.020 (Application 
Procedures) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code to Create a New Process to Allow 
for Early Separation Findings for Land Uses with Separation Requirements. 

Reference:  Mike Viglione, Associate Planner 
Recommendation:   Conduct the Public Hearing and Introduce Ordinance No. 2018-
450. 

 

Reports to Council: 

4. License Agreement for Wireless Installation on Public Structures 

The City Council will adopt resolution authorizing a license agreement for wireless 
installation on public structures with New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC. 

Reference:  Mike James, Assistant City Manager / Public Works Director 
Recommendation:  Adopt a Resolution entitled, “Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Lemon Grove, California, Approving a License Agreement for New 
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC DBA AT&T Mobility for Wireless Installation on Public 
Structures. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 449, Adding Chapter 8.70 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code 
Establishing the Tobacco Retailer License. 

The City Council will conduct the second reading, by title only, and adopt Ordinance 
No. 449 adding Chapter 8.70 to the Lemon Grove Municipal Code. 

Reference:  Lydia Romero City Manager  
Recommendation: Conduct Second Reading, by Title Only, and Adopt Ordinance 
No. 449 adding Chapter 8.70 to the Lemon Grove Municipal Code. 
 

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
(GC 53232.3 (d)) (53232.3.(d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings 
attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 

City Manager and Department Director Reports: (Non-Action Items) 

 
 

Adjournment 



City of Lemon Grove City Council Meeting  December 18, 2018 
 
 
 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the City of Lemon Grove will provide special 
accommodations for persons who require assistance to access, attend and/or participate in meetings of the 
City Council.  If you require such assistance, please contact the City Clerk at (619) 825-3800 or email 
schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov.  A full agenda packet is available for public review at City Hall. 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF NOTIFICATION AND POSTING   
  
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )   
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) SS   
CITY OF LEMON GROVE)   
  
I, Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Lemon Grove, hereby declare under penalty of 
perjury that a copy of the above Agenda of the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California, was delivered and/or notice by email not less than 72 hours before the 
hour of 5:30 p.m. on December 13, 2018, to the members of the governing agency, and caused 
the agenda to be posted on the City’s website at www.lemongrove.ca.gov and at Lemon Grove 
City Hall, 3232 Main Street Lemon Grove, CA 91945.   
  

/s/: Shelley Chapel  
Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk  

 



  

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No.  1.A 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: James Lough, City Attorney 

Item Title:  Waive the Full Text Reading of all Ordinances  

 

Summary:  Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this agenda. Ordinances 

shall be introduced and adopted by title only. 
  

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Fiscal Impact: None. 

 

Public Notification: None. 

 



  

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.  1.B 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: Molly Brennan, Finance Manager 

 mailto:MBrennan@lemongrove.ca.govm 

Item Title:  City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands  

 
Recommended Action:  Ratify Demands. 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Fiscal Impact: None. 
 
Public Notification: None. 
 





City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary

Approved as Submitted: 

Molly Brennan, Finance Manager ACH/AP Checks 11/27/18‐12/05/18 952,265.96

For Council Meeting: 12/18/18

Payroll ‐ 12/04/18 193,419.61

Total Demands 1,145,685.57

CHECK NO INVOICE NO VENDOR NAME CHECK DATE Description INVOICE AMOUNT

CHECK 

AMOUNT

ACH Nov20 18 US Treasury 11/27/2018 Federal Taxes 11/20/18 24,661.42 24,661.42

ACH Refill 11/27/18 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 11/28/2018 Postage Usage 11/27/18 250.00 250.00

ACH Nov7‐Nov20 18 Calpers Supplemental Income 457 Plan 11/28/2018 457 Plan 11/7/18‐11/20/18 5,523.53 5,523.53

ACH Refill 11/28/18 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 11/29/2018 Postage Usage 11/28/18 250.00 250.00

ACH 1000240115 City of San Diego 11/29/2018 Metro Sewer System FY19‐QTR 2 ‐ 10/1/18‐12/31/18 730,471.00 730,471.00

ACH Nov18 Wage Works 11/30/2018 FSA Reimbursement ‐ Nov'18 1,203.83 1,203.83

ACH Refill 11/29/18 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 12/03/2018 Postage Usage 11/29/18 250.00 250.00

ACH Nov18 Power Pay Biz/Evo 12/03/2018 Online Credit Card Processing ‐ Nov'18 72.65 72.65

ACH Dec 2018 Pers Health 12/04/2018 Pers Health Insurance ‐ Dec '18 52,003.46 52,003.46

ACH Nov18 Authorize.Net 12/04/2018 Merchant Fees ‐ Nov'18 20.35 20.35

ACH 8910410 LEAF 12/05/2018 Ricoh C3502 Copier System‐PW Yard ‐ Nov'18 160.51 160.51

10529 AP282119 A‐1 Party Rentals 11/28/2018 Bonfire‐Rental Equip‐Stage/Steps/Dance Floor 12/7/18 694.57 694.57

10530 C7523 A‐Pot Rentals, Inc. 11/28/2018 Portable Restroom Rental ‐ Bonfire ‐ 12/7/18‐12/10/18 389.80 389.80

10531 120118 American General Life Insurance Company 11/28/2018 Life Insurance ‐ L Romero 232.18 232.18

10532 900746‐9 BJ's Rentals 11/28/2018 9 Light Tower Rental ‐ Holiday Bonfire 12/7/18 1,617.75 1,947.06

906321‐9 Boom Knuckle Rental ‐ Holiday Banners/Decor 11/26/18 329.31

10533 Dec 7 18 Burke, Patrick J 11/28/2018 Bonfire ‐ The Grovecats Band  5‐8 pm 12/7/18 850.00 850.00

10534 CMS AN LLC C M S AN LLC 11/28/2018 Refund/C M S AN LLC/Sewer Fees Charged in Error‐7/15‐6/18 1,691.32 1,691.32

10535 Dec 7 18 Cali Venture Party Rentals 11/28/2018 Bonfire ‐ Laser Tag 3‐8 pm 12/7/18 475.00 475.00

10536 19408959 Canon Financial Services Inc. 11/28/2018 Canon Plotter Contract Charge 11/21/18‐12/20/18 144.00 144.00

10537 4012658556 Cintas Corporation #694 11/28/2018 Janitorial Supplies ‐ Fire‐ 11/22/18 466.48 466.48

10538 20503 City of La Mesa 11/28/2018 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Runkle 9/25/18 1,257.14 6,387.58

20503 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Sergent 9/27/18 78.57

20503 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ DeLeon 10/6/18 997.20

20503 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Tasco 10/6/18 1,154.35

20503 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Harris 10/6/18 1,344.18

20503 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Deitz 10/8/18 456.93

20504 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Garcia 10/30/18 1,099.21

10539 Dec 7 18 Climb‐It 11/28/2018 Bonfire‐ Rock Climbing Wall 3‐8 pm 12/7/18 825.00 825.00

10540 81925836 Corelogic Solutions, LLC. 11/28/2018 Image Requests ‐ Oct'18 5.50 5.50

10541 201800948 County of San Diego/Assessor/Recorder 11/28/2018 Recording Services‐ 10/18/18 193.00 193.00

10542 15042 Custom Auto Wrap Inc. 11/28/2018 Bonfire Banner ‐ Update Sponsor Banner 306.51 306.51

10543 11/5‐8/18 Esgil Corporation 11/28/2018 75% Building Fees‐ 11/5/18‐11/8/18 3,162.84 3,162.84

10544 26415 Excell Security, Inc. 11/28/2018 Senior Center Security Guard ‐ 11/10/18 139.72 139.72

10545 109874652 Globalstar USA, Inc. 11/28/2018 Satellite Service 10/16/18‐11/15/18 171.94 171.94

10546 00057640 Hudson Safe‐T‐ Lite Rentals 11/28/2018 Sleeves for Posts ‐ Street ID Signs 75.78 614.87

00057732 2 5‐Gallon Red Traffic Paint ‐ Hilltop Curb 214.34

00057929 Caps for Posts ‐ Street ID Signs 324.75

10547 11174 Infrastructure Engineering Corporation 11/28/2018 Prof Svc: LGA Realignment 9/29/18‐10/26/18 14,455.88 14,455.88



CHECK NO INVOICE NO VENDOR NAME CHECK DATE Description INVOICE AMOUNT

CHECK 

AMOUNT

10548 1853 Julie's Party People 11/28/2018 Bonfire ‐ Face Painting & Balloon Art 3‐8 pm 12/7/18 750.00 750.00

10549 18‐114 Lemon Grove Historical Society 11/28/2018 Holiday Decor & Lighting‐ Lee House/Parsonage ‐ Bonfire 12/7/18 150.00 150.00

10550 Oct 18 Lounsbery Ferguson Altona & Peak LLP 11/28/2018 General 01163‐00002 ‐ Oct '18 14,691.00 18,331.85

Oct 18 Code Enforcement 01163‐00003 ‐ Oct '18 232.87

Oct 18 Sanitation Dist 01163‐00036 ‐ Oct '18 498.00

Oct 18 01163‐00028 ‐ Oct '18 1,181.30

Oct 18 01163‐00037 ‐ Oct '18 101.88

Oct 18 01163‐00040 ‐ Oct '18 83.00

Oct 18 01163‐00041 ‐ Oct '18 481.40

Oct 18 01163‐00043 ‐ Oct '18 1,062.40

10551 IN1268919 Municipal Emergency Services  Inc. 11/28/2018 SCBA Flow Tests 1,050.00 1,050.00

10552 Dec 7 18 Pinata World Party Rentals 11/28/2018 ** VOID  ** 0.00 0.00

10553 Nov‐18 PLIC‐ SBD Grand Island 11/28/2018 Dental Insurance ‐Nov18 4,169.63 8,406.55

Dec‐18 Dental Insurance ‐Dec18 4,236.92

10554 Sanchez Sanchez, Anita 11/28/2018 Refund/Sanchez, Anita/Deposit ‐ LBH‐ 11/17/18 200.00 200.00

10555 11/20/2018 SDG&E 11/28/2018 3225 Olive‐ 10/18/18‐11/18/18 119.17 343.32

11/20/2018 3500 1/2 Main‐ 10/18/18‐11/18/18 224.15

10556 Crockett Shera Crockett, Inc. 11/28/2018 Refund/Shera Crockett/Deposit‐ Eng/Grading/Inspctn 8501 Ildica 6,089.90 6,089.90

10557 12566 Sioux Corporation 11/28/2018 Bonfire ‐ Horse Carriage Wagon Rides 5‐8pm 12/7/18 850.00 850.00

10558 491918 South Coast Emergency Vehicle Services 11/28/2018 E10 Replace Engine Oil Dipstick 277.92 277.92

10559 Dec‐18 Standard Insurance Company 11/28/2018 Long Term Disability Insurance ‐ Dec18 1,489.41 1,489.41

10560 Toscano Toscano, Sergio & Karla 11/28/2018 Refund/Toscano, Sergio & Karla/Deposit ‐ CC‐ 11/10/18 300.00 300.00

10561 9818297064 Verizon Wireless 11/28/2018 City Phone Charges‐ 10/13/18‐11/12/18 200.03 200.03

10562 39336 A Aaron Lock & Key 12/05/2018 Lock/Rekey ‐ Restroom ‐ HOPE Inc. 447.28 447.28

10563 L1072895SL American Messaging 12/05/2018 Pager Replacement Program 12/1/18‐12/31/18 43.04 43.04

10564 36677 Anita Fire Hose Company Etc. 12/05/2018 Fire Hose Maintenance & Parts 61.95 61.95

10565 77036‐ Dec 18 Anthem Blue Cross EAP 12/05/2018 Employee Assistance Program ‐ Dec 18 114.40 114.40

10566 11/12/2018 AT&T 12/05/2018 Phone Service 10/13/18‐11/12/108 82.72 162.72

11/22/2018 Backup City Hall Internet‐ 10/23/18‐11/22/15 80.00

10567 20181117 Berk, Chris 12/05/2018 Bonfire ‐ Photo Booth 3‐8 pm 12/7/18 1,000.00 1,000.00

10568 904541‐9 BJ's Rentals 12/05/2018 Propane 7.17 14.03

907726‐9 Propane 6.86

10569 21711 California Diesel Compliance, Inc. 12/05/2018 Smoke Opacity Test ‐ E210/E310/LGPW #29 270.00 450.00

Smoke Opacity Test ‐ LGPW #24/LGPW #32 GapVax 180.00

10570 12/4/18 California State Disbursement Unit 12/05/2018 Wage Withholding Pay Period Ending 12/4/18 161.53 161.53

10571 19456057 Canon Financial Services Inc. 12/05/2018 Canon Copier Contract Charge 12/1/18 642.60 642.60

10572 4027684296 Canon Solutions America, Inc. 12/05/2018 Canon Maintenance‐Copier Usage 8/27/18‐11/26/18 1,047.44 1,047.44

10573 4012658541 Cintas Corporation #694 12/05/2018 Janitorial Supplies ‐ 11/22/18 778.88 997.54

4012961197 Janitorial Supplies ‐ 11/29/18 218.66

10574 FRS0000132 City of El Cajon 12/05/2018 Overtime Reimbursement ‐ Paddock 11/7/18 1,197.49 1,197.49

10575 1000241799 City of San Diego 12/05/2018 Chollas Creek TMDL Phase II‐ Cost Share FY17/18 29,810.48 29,810.48

10576 1889 Clark Telecom & Electric Inc. 12/05/2018 Street Light Dig Alert Mark Outs ‐ Sep '18 552.50 3,440.19

1890 Street Light Repairs ‐ Sep '18 1,616.50

1911 Street Light Dig‐Alert Mark Outs ‐ Oct '18 728.69

1912 Street Light Repairs ‐ Oct '18 542.50

10577 8100 Countywide Mechanical Systems, Inc. 12/05/2018 A/C Repair‐ Senior Ctr 10/3/18 317.50 317.50

10578 11/6/2018 Cox Communications 12/05/2018 Calsense Modem Line:2259 Washington 11/6/18‐12/5/18 21.11 449.83

11/19/2018 Phone/PW Yard/2873 Skyline‐ 11/19/18‐12/18/18 212.63

11/6/2018 Calsense Modem Line:7071 Mt Vernon 11/6/18‐12/5/18 20.01

11/9/2018 Calsense Modem Line:8235 Mt Vernon 11/9/18‐12/8/18 94.39

11/18/2018 Copy Room/City Manager Fax Line‐ 11/18/18‐12/17/18 3.96

11/4/2018 Phone/Rec Ctr/ 3131 School Ln‐ 11/4/18‐12/3/18 97.73



CHECK NO INVOICE NO VENDOR NAME CHECK DATE Description INVOICE AMOUNT

CHECK 

AMOUNT

10579 4363 D‐ Max Engineering Inc. 12/05/2018 8230 Golden Ave Doc Review 6/1/18‐6/30/18 390.00 2,032.85

4394 Northside Commons Doc Review 7/1/18‐7/31/18 360.00

4470 8055 Golden Ave Plan Review 8/1/18‐8/31/18 312.50

4661 1993 Dain Dr Doc Review 8/1/18‐8/31/18 214.09

4662 1993 Dain Dr Doc Review 9/1/18‐9/30/18 241.15

4663 1993 Dain Dr Doc Review 10/1/18‐10/31/18 190.11

4664 6800 Mallard Ct Stormwater Inspections 10/1/18‐10/31/18 325.00

10580 0076163‐IN Doggie Walk Bags Inc. 12/05/2018 4,270 Doggie Walk Dispenser Bags w/Pouch 1,122.24 1,122.24

10581 1127182305 Domestic Linen‐ California Inc. 12/05/2018 Shop Towels & Safety Mats 11/27/18 82.10 82.10

10582 EC Constructors EC Constructors, Inc. 12/05/2018 Refund/EC Constructors Inc/Business License 10/24/18 47.25 47.25

10583 1187 Ensemble Solutions Group 12/05/2018 E210 Cradlepoint 3G/4G Multiband Router w/WiFi/5in1 Antenna 1,517.30 1,517.30

10584 11/12‐15/18 Esgil Corporation 12/05/2018 75% Building Fees‐ 11/12/18‐11/15/18 6,843.30 6,843.30

10585 11/28/2018 G & G Backflow Plumbing Service 12/05/2018 Backflow Assembly ‐ Repaired #4 & Tested Backflow 155.09 310.18

11/29/2018 Backflow Assembly ‐ Repaired #2 & Tested Backflow 155.09

10586 Dec 7 18 Gonzalez, Marcos 12/05/2018 Bonfire ‐ Tables/Chairs/Bounce House/Canopy Rental 12/7/18 840.00 840.00

10587 00057729 Hudson Safe‐T‐ Lite Rentals 12/05/2018 Mo. Rntl ‐ Water Wall Dividers/LGA Realignment 10/12/18‐11/7/18 2,192.00 2,192.00

10588 Dec4 18 ICMA 12/05/2018 ICMA Deferred Compensation Pay Period Ending 12/4/18 580.77 580.77

10589 1514 Janazz, LLC SD 12/05/2018 IT Services‐ City Hall‐ Nov'18 2,599.00 2,599.00

10590 130973 Knott's Pest Control, Inc. 12/05/2018 On Call Pest Control‐ Fire Stn ‐ Nov18 95.00 95.00

10591 Reimb‐ 11/20/18 Macias, Vivian 12/05/2018 Reimb: Notary Renewal/Recording Fee & Filing Fee/Macias 56.00 56.00

10592 Metro Fire & Sa Metro Fire & Safety, Inc. 12/05/2018 Refund/Metro Fire & Safety Inc/Fire Plan Review Fees 11/6/18 236.00 236.00

10593 INV026254 RapidScale Inc. 12/05/2018 Virtual Hosting 11/30/18 3,370.78 3,370.78

10594 3601 1/2LGA11/2 SDG&E 12/05/2018 3601 1/2 LGA‐ Gas & Electric 10/18/18‐11/18/18 33.21 33.21

10595 88054157 SiteOne Landscape Supply, LLC 12/05/2018 Herbicide/Roundup/Lesco Tracker 137.64 137.64

10596 18835 SOCAL Gamez LLC 12/05/2018 Bonfire ‐ Game Truck 3‐8 pm 12/7/18 725.00 725.00

10597 SW‐0157943 State Water Resources Control Board 12/05/2018 Annual Permit Fee‐ LGA Realignment 7/1/18‐6/30/19 820.00 820.00

10598 Nov2018 Sun Life Financial 12/05/2018 Life Insurance ‐ Nov18 109.71 109.71

10599 Swinerton Swinerton Builders 12/05/2018 Refund/Swinerton Builders/Business License 10/24/18 15.75 15.75

10600 1120180378 Underground Service Alert of Southern Ca. 12/05/2018 45 New Ticket Charges ‐ Nov'18 84.25 84.25

10601 9818297639 Verizon Wireless 12/05/2018 Mobile Broadband Access‐ 10/13/18‐11/12/18 76.02 740.07

9818746406 Fire Prev Phone Line/EOC Router/Tablets‐10/21/18‐11/20/18 475.27

9818297065 PW Tablets‐ 10/13/18‐11/12/18 188.78

10602 72024381 Vulcan Materials Company 12/05/2018 Asphalt 283.71 434.56

72037006 Asphalt 150.85

10603 11192018 Hudson Safe‐T‐ Lite Rentals 12/05/2018 Bonfire ‐ 22 Water Walls/Public Safety 12/7/18 424.00 424.00

952,265.96 952,265.96



CITY OF LEMON GROVE  

  
CITY COUNCIL   

STAFF REPORT  
Item No.  1.C   

Meeting Date:  December 18, 2018  

Submitted to:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council  

Department:     City Manager’s Office  

Staff Contact:   Shelley Chapel, City Clerk  

    Schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov  

Item Title:      Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes    

  
Recommended Action:  Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes for 

Regular Meeting held December 4, 2018.  

  

Environmental Review:  

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration  

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration  

  

Fiscal Impact: None.  

  

Public Notification: None.  

    
  

  





 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF  

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2018  

  
The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority,   

Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board,  and 
Lemon Grove Successor Agency.  

  

Call To Order:  

Mayor Vasquez called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.   

  

Present: Mayor Racquel Vasquez, Mayor Pro Tem Jerry Jones, Councilmember David Arambula,  

Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza (arrived at 6:04), and Councilmember Matt Mendoza (arrived at  
6:05).    

Absent:   

  

Staff Members Present:  

Lydia Romero, City Manager, James Lough, City Attorney, Mike James, Assistant City 

Manager/Public Works Director, Steven Swaney, Fire Chief, Lieutenant Scott Amos, San Diego  

County Sheriff’s Office - Lemon Grove Substation, , Shelley Chapel, City Clerk, Roberto Hidalgo, 

Human Resources Manager, and Molly Brennan, Finance Manager.  

  

Pledge of Allegiance:  

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Mayor Pro Tem Jones.  

  

Public Comments:  

  

Appeared to comment were: John L. Wood and Brenda Hammond.  

  

1.  Consent Calendar:  

  

A. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda.  

B. Ratification of Payment of Demands  

C. City Council Meeting Minutes for the Regular Meeting of November 20, 2018.  

D. Receive and File Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for the Regular Meeting of 

October 22, 2018.  

F. Adoption of Resolution No. 2018-3623, Adopting the Litigation Hold Policy and 

Procedure.  

G. Rejection of Claim – Elliott Kanter, Esq. on behalf of Hatsuko Hoss.  

  

Action: Motion by Councilmember Arambula, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Jones, to 

approve Consent Calendar Items A-G.    

The motion passed by the following vote:  

   Ayes:     Vasquez, Jones, Arambula, J. Mendoza, M. Mendoza    Noes:     None.  

      Absent:  None.  

    

  

  



Reports to Council:  

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020) (Successor Agency 
Item)  

Mayor Vasquez introduced Molly Brennan, Finance Manager who presented the report. 

Finance Manager Brennan noted that the County had requested last minute changes to 

a page of the report and those changes were provided to Council and the public as 

highlighted in handout. (Available on City website and City Clerk’s Office) No Public 
Speakers.  

Action: Adopt Resolution entitled, “A Resolution of the Lemon Grove Successor Agency Board 
Adopting a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, 
Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 34179, Division 24, Part 1.85, and 
Authorizing Posting and Transmittal Thereof.”  
  

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Jones, seconded by Councilmember J. Mendoza, to adopt the 

Resolution No. 2018-02, to include the amended information provided by the County. The 

motion passed by the following vote:  

   Ayes:    Vasquez, Jones, Arambula, J. Mendoza, M. Mendoza    Noes:    None.  

      Absent: None.  

  

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City:  

  

Mayor Pro Tem Jones attended the following meetings and events:  

• Announced the Amended Wastewater Agreement had been approved by Metro 

Wastewater.  

  

Mayor Vasquez attended the following meetings and events:  

• An event that recognized AB1811 and SB856 HR 6561 the Older Americans Act.  

  

City Manager and Department Director Reports:  

• Mike James, Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director announced the City Bonfire 

Event to take place on Friday, December 7th from 3:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  

  

Closed Session:  

  

1. LIABILITY CLAIM  

Government Code Section 54956.95  

Claimant:  Leticia Oliver  

Agency Claimed Against:  City of Lemon Grove  

2. LIABILITY CLAIM  

Government Code Section 54956.95  

Claimant:  April Flake   

Agency Claimed Against:  Multiple Defendants including City of Lemon Grove  

City Attorney James Lough announced the City Council will be adjourning to closed session at 

6:33 p.m. for the purposes above.   

  

City Attorney James Lough reported no reportable action on items discussed in Closed Session.   

  



Adjournment:    

There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 7:00 

p.m. to a meeting to be held Tuesday, December 18, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the Lemon Grove 

Community Center located at 3146 School Lane, for a Regular Meeting.   

  

  

________________________________________  

Shelley Chapel, MMC  

City Clerk  

  

  

  

  

   

  



 Mayor Pro Tem Rotation 
 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.  1.D. 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: Lydia Romero, City Manager 

Item Title: Mayor Pro Tem Rotation 
 

Recommended Action:  Adopt a Resolution (Attachment B) confirming the rotation 
of Councilmember David Arambula to serve as Mayor Pro Tem commencing December 
18, 2018, through December 17, 2019, and establishing the Mayor Pro Tem rotation 
schedule for the subsequent two years. 
 

Summary:   
City of Lemon Grove Resolution No. 2649 (Attachment C), adopted on July 16, 20016 
establishes the policy to determine the rotation of the Mayor Pro Tem position among the 
City Council.  Based on the policy, it is Councilmember David Arambula’ s turn to rotate 
into the Mayor Pro Tem position. 
 

The staff report (Attachment A) provides an analysis of how Resolution No. 2649 is 
applied and provides a schedule for the Mayor Pro Tem rotation for the next several years.  
The Mayor Pro Tem appointment and rotation schedule is presented in a resolution 
(Attachment B) for City Council consideration. 
 

Environmental Review: 
 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact: None. 
Public Notification: None. 
Public Information: 

 None  Newsletter article  Notice to property owners within 300 
ft. 

 Notice published in local newspaper  Neighborhood meeting 

Attachments: 
Attachment A – Staff Report 
Attachment B – Resolution 
Attachment C – Resolution 2649 
  





 Mayor Pro Tem Rotation 
 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 

  Attachment A 

CITY COUNCIL 
STAFF REPORT 

   
Discussion: 
Each year, the City rotates its Mayor Pro Tem designee (Resolution No. 2649, adopted on 
July 16, 2006, establishes the rotation policy—Attachment C).  During election years, 
Government Code Section 36801 states that following the declaration of election results 
and the installation of elected officials, the City Council chooses one of its members to 
serve as Mayor Pro Tem.  During non-election years, the Mayor Pro Tem rotation occurs 
one year following the previous year’s rotation.   
 
The City’s Mayor Pro Tem rotation policy is based on the three principles outlined below:   

The rotation should follow the pattern established from the previous six years, The Mayor 
Pro Tem should serve for approximately a one-year period, and In the event that two or 
more Councilmembers have not served as Mayor Pro Tem and have equal tenure in office, 
the one who received the most votes in the previous election should be placed higher on 
the rotation list.   
 
The following City Councilmembers have rotated in the Mayor Pro Tem position in the 
following order for the past six years: George Gastil (2012), Howard Cook (2013), Jerry 
Jones (2014), Racquel Vasquez (2015), George Gastil (2016), Jennifer Mendoza (2017) 
and Jerry Jones (2018). 

Based on the principles outlined in Resolution No. 2649, the following shows the rotation 
of Mayor Pro Tem for the next three terms: 

December 2018 – December 2019   David Arambula 
December 2019 – December 2020   Matt Mendoza 
December 2020 – December 2021  Jennifer Mendoza 
 
It is recommended that Councilmember David Arambula be appointed as the Mayor Pro 
Tem commencing on December 18, 2018 to serve in that position for the next year, 
followed by Councilmembers M. Mendoza and J. Mendoza.  
 
Conclusion: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution (Attachment B) appointing 
Councilmember David Arambula as the Mayor Pro Tem from the period of December 18, 
2018 through December 17, 2019 and confirm the rotation schedule for the subsequent 
two years. 





 Mayor Pro Tem Rotation 
 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 
CALIFORNIA CONFIRMING THE ROTATION OF COUNCILMEMBER 
DAVID ARAMBULA TO SERVE AS THE MAYOR PRO TEM FOR THE 

PERIOD OF DECEMBER 18, 2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 17, 2019 AND 
ESTABLISHING THE MAYOR PRO TEM ROTATION SCHEDULE FOR THE 

SUBSEQUENT TWO YEARS 

 

WHEREAS, Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 2.14.080 establishes the 
position of Mayor Pro Tem; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2649, adopted by the City Council on July 16, 2006, 

established a policy to determine the rotation of the Mayor Pro Tem among 
Councilmembers; and 

 
WHEREAS, referring to the policy established by Resolution 2649, the City 

Council determines the rotation of the Mayor Pro Tem by following the rotation pattern 
established from previous years, considering that the Mayor Pro Tem should serve for 
approximately a period of one year, and in the event that two or more Councilmembers 
have not served as Mayor Pro Tem and have equal tenure in office, the one who received 
the most votes in the previous election should be placed higher on the rotation list; and  

 
WHEREAS, referring to the policy established by Resolution 2649, after a 

municipal election, the City Council is to appoint its Mayor Pro Tem and confirm the 
rotation for the subsequent two years by resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, applying the policy established by Resolution 2649, Councilmember 

David Arambula would serve as Mayor Pro Tem for the period of December 18, 2018 
through December 17, 2019, followed by Councilmember Matt Mendoza then by 
Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California hereby: 
 

1. Appoints Councilmember David Arambula as Mayor Pro Tem from December 18, 
2018 through December 17, 2019; and 

 

schapel
Typewritten Text

schapel
Typewritten Text

schapel
Typewritten Text

schapel
Typewritten Text

schapel
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



 Mayor Pro Tem Rotation 
 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 4 

 
 
 

2. Confirms that Councilmember Matt Mendoza to serve as Mayor Pro Tem for a one-
year period following Councilmember David Arambula’s term; and 

 
3. Confirms that Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza will serve as Mayor Pro Tem for 

a one-year period following Councilmember Matt Mendoza term. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED: On __________, 2018 the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California adopted Resolution No. 2018-___, passed by the following vote:  

 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:                                                     

_________________________ 

Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

_______________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form:   

________________________ 
City Attorney  



schapel
Typewritten Text

schapel
Typewritten Text
Attachment C





 Maddy Act – Local Appointments List 

 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 
 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No.  1.E. 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: Shelley Chapel, City Clerk 

 Schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title: Annual Local Appointments List Update 

 

Recommended Action:  Approve the Local Appointments List for 2019 and authorize 

the City Clerk to post the list at City Hall and on the City website, in compliance with 

Government Code 54972. 
 

Summary:   

California Government Code 54970-54974 requires on or before December 31 of each 

year, each legislative body shall prepare an appointments list of all regular and ongoing 

boards, commissions, and committees which are appointed by the legislative body of the 

local agency.  This list shall be known as the Local Appointments List. 
 

The Appointments List serves to provide awareness of the opportunities to serve on local 

regulatory and advisory boards, commissions and committees.   
 

Any unscheduled vacancy that may occur during 2019 will be determined a special 

vacancy and notice shall be posted at City Hall and the City Website pursuant to Section 

54973-54974 of the Government Code not earlier than twenty (20) days before and not 

later than twenty (20) days after the vacancy occurs.  Final appointment to the 

Board/Commission/Committee shall not be made by the legislative body for at least ten 

(10) working days after the posting of the notice. 
 

Description: 

In compliance with the requirements of Government Code Section 54970, the following 

Local Appointments List is posted on an annual basis.  The List presents all current 

members of the City Boards/Commissions/Committees and the dates of the terms. 

mailto:Schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov


 Maddy Act – Local Appointments List 

 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 
 

Code Enforcement and Administrative Citation Hearing Officers consists of up 

to six (6) hearing officers who are appointed by the City Council and are not required to 

reside in the City.  The City Council appoints the members for a term of three (3) years, 

which term will commence on April 5 and terminate on April 5 three years thereafter. The 

City’s Code Enforcement Policy authorizes City staff to issue administrative citations for 

violations of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code, and also provides for appointment of 

hearing officers to conduct appeal hearings for any citation issued. 
 

Community Advisory Commission consists of three permanent members who are 

all residents of the City.  The City Council shall appoint additional members that will serve 

a limited duration to assist permanent members in the study of issues assigned to the 

Community Advisory Commission by the City Council.  Limited duration members shall 

be residents, business owners and/or property owners within the City of Lemon Grove. 

Permanent member’s terms are for a period of three (3) years, or until reappointment or 

appointment of a successor.  Ad Hoc Community Advisory Commission Members term 

end when the issue they are studying is completed and the recommendation is accepted 

by the City Council. 
 

Meetings are held the Second Tuesday of the Month at the Lemon Grove Community 

Center. 
 

Planning Commission consists of five (5) members who are all residents of the City.  

The City Council appoints the members for a term of four (4) years, which term will 

commence on July 1 and terminate on June 30 four years thereafter.  
 

Meetings are held on the Fourth Monday of the Month at the Lemon Grove Community 

Center. 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact: None. 

Public Notification: None. 

Public Information: 

 None  Newsletter article  Notice to property owners within 300 

ft. 

 Notice published in local newspaper  Neighborhood meeting 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Local Appointments List  



 Maddy Act – Local Appointments List 

 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 
 

          Attachment A 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
LOCAL APPOINTMENTS LIST 

 

In compliance with the requirements of Government Code Section 54970, the following 

Local Appointments List is posted on an annual basis.  The List presents all current 

members of the City Boards/Commissions/Committees and the dates of the terms. 
 

Code Enforcement and Administrative Citation Hearing Officers 

Position Member Term Appointed Term Expires 

Hearing Officer Franco Del Rosario 3-Years April 5, 2016 April 5, 2019 

Hearing Officer Katie Dexter 3-Years April 15, 2016 April 5, 2019 

Hearing Officer Anthony Jemison 3-Years April 5, 2016 April 5, 2019 

Hearing Officer Animal Control 
Officer or Designee 

n/a n/a n/a 

Hearing Officer Stormwater 
Designee 

n/a n/a n/a 

 

Community Advisory Commission 

Position  
 

Member  Term Appointed Term Expires 

Chair  Yajahara Preciado 3-Years June 20, 2017 July 1, 2020 

Vice Chair  Angeles Nelson  3-Years July 17, 2018 July 1, 2021 

Member Tom Clabby  1-Year July 17, 2018 July 1, 2019 

First Alternate Walter Oliwa  1-Year July 17, 2018 July 1, 2019 

Ad hoc #1 Luis Rodriguez Limited Aug 21, 2018 City Council approval  

Ad hoc #2 Anna Kimber Limited Aug 21, 2018 City Council approval  

Ad hoc #3 Carol Weiss Limited Aug 21, 2018 City Council approval  

Ad hoc #4 Glenn Thornton  Limited Aug 21, 2018 City Council approval  
 

Planning Commission * 

Position Member Term Appointed Term Expires 

Chair Robert Bailey 4-Years June 25, 2018 June 2022 

Vice-Chair Stephen Browne 4-Years June 25, 2018 June 2022 

Commissioner Liana LeBaron 3-Years June 25, 2018 June 2021 

Commissioner Jessica Relucio 2-Years June 25, 2018 June 2020  

Commissioner Seth Smith 1-Year June 25, 2018 June 2019 

*Individuals appointed to this Commission is subject to the Fair Political Practices Commission 

regulations and must file a Statement of Economic Interests. 













 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. 1.G 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: Public Works 

Staff Contact: Mike James, Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director 

 mjames@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title:  Approval of Final Map for Tentative Map TM0061 located at 

6800 Mallard Court  

 

Recommended Action:  Adopt a resolution (Attachment A) approving the Final Map 

for Tentative Map TM0061 and authorize the City Clerk to accept the easements and on 

the Final Map 

Summary: On April 19, 2016, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted Resolution No. 

2016-3406 and 2016-3407 (Attachment B) approving Tentative Map TM0061 which 

authorized 12 residential lots, one common lot for a private street, and one common open 

space lot on an undeveloped site, on 1.59 acres of land located at 6800 Mallard Court in 

Lemon Grove. 

Infill Development Company, the owner of said parcel, has satisfied the conditions of 

approval for the proposed subdivision and requests approval of the Final Map for 

TM0061. Performance bonds and subdivision agreements are in place to ensure that 

conditions of approval are met and the project is completed in the manner approved by 

City Council.  

If adopted, the Resolution (Attachment A) will authorize the City Clerk to execute the 

Final Map and accept the easements. 

  

Discussion: 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

 

mailto:mjames@lemongrove.ca.gov


 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

The City will receive $2,404 for each new residential unit constructed in accordance 

with the Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program (RTCIP).  

 

Public Notification: None 

 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Resolution 

Attachment B – Adopted Resolution No. 2016-3406 and 2016-3407 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 

Attachment A 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-_______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE MAP TM0061 

WHEREAS, On April 19, 2016, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted Resolution 

No. 2016-3406 and 2016-3407 approving Tentative Subdivision Map TM0061, as 

meeting the requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance and the California 

Subdivision Map Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Map for Tentative Map TM0061 attached hereto as Exhibit 

‘A’ has been submitted and meets the requirements as set forth in the California 

Government Code section 66433, et. Seq. and is now ready for approval by the City 

Council; and 

WHEREAS, Infill Development Company, as the owner of the project has paid 

all fees required by the conditions for processing of the Final Map; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Development Services and the City Engineer have 

found said Final Map of Tract No. 0061 substantially conforms to the conditionally 

approved Tentative Map, as required by the California Subdivision Map Act.  

WHEREAS, the Mitigated Negative Declaration (ND16-03) was certified by City 

Council for Tentative Map No. 0061 on April 19, 2016; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, hereby finds: 

1. The Final Map is consistent with the General Plan, the California Subdivision 
Map Act, and is in substantial conformance with the previously approved 
Tentative Map (TM0061); and 

2. The Final Map for Tentative Map No. 0061 is hereby approved, and the City 
Clerk is authorized and directed to certify this fact on the face of the Final Map; 
and 

3. All easements identified on the Final Map are accepted by the City of Lemon 
Grove; and  

4. Authorizes the City Clerk to record a certified copy of this resolution.  
 

  



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 4 

 

          Attachment A 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on ______, 2018, the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. _______, passed by the following 

vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

       

      __________________________ 

      Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

_________________________ 
James Lough, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Exhibit ‘A’ 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 6 

 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 7 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 8 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 9 

 

 

 





 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 10 

 

Attachment B

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 11 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 12 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 13 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 14 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 15 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 16 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 17 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 18 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 19 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 20 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 21 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 22 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 23 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 24 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 25 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 26 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 27 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 28 

 

 

 

 





 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 29 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 30 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 31 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 32 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 33 

 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 34 

 

 

 



 Approval of Final Map TM 0061 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 35 

 

 

 



 CalRecycle Application Authorization 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. _1.H__ 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: Development Services Department 

Staff Contact: Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer 
 promero@lemongrove.ca.gov 
 
Item Title:   City Council Resolution Approving the Authorization of Application 

Submittal for the CalRecycle Beverage Container Recycling City/County 
Payment Program  

 

Recommended Action:  Adopt a Resolution, Entitled, “A Resolution of the City 

Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California, Approving the Authorization of 

Application Submittal for the CalRecycle Beverage Container Recycling City/County 

Payment Program,” and direct staff to submit the application to CalRecycle for any and 

all payment programs offered.     

 

Summary:  Each fiscal year, the California Department of Resources Recycling and 

Recovery (CalRecycle) offers funding opportunities authorized by legislation to assist 

public and private entities in the safe and effective management of the waste stream.  This 

year staff is applying for a grant in the amount of $6,945.00 to fund community outreach 

education at community events and in elementary and/or middle school classrooms in 

the City of Lemon Grove highlighting the importance of beverage container recycling.        
  

Discussion:  The City of Lemon Grove has participated in the CalRecycle Beverage 

Container Recycling City/County Payment Program since 2005.  The goal of CalRecycle’s 

beverage container recycling program is to reach and maintain an 80 percent recycling 

rate for all California refund value beverage containers - aluminum, glass, plastic and bi-

metal. Projects implemented by cities and counties will assist in reaching and maintaining 

this goal.  Eligible applicants include cities, counties, or cities and counties in California, 

as identified by the California Department of Finance, unless otherwise determined by 

CalRecycle.   

  

mailto:promero@lemongrove.ca.gov


 CalRecycle Application Authorization 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 

 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact:  If the application is approved by CalRecycle, the City will receive funds 

in the amount of $6,945.00 to be used for beverage container recycling education in the 

community.    

 

Public Notification:  None 

 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Resolution Approving the Authorization of Application Submittal for 

the CalRecycle Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program   

 



 CalRecycle Application Authorization 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 

Attachment A 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE AUTHORIZATION OF APPLICATION 

SUBMITTAL FOR THE CALRECYCLE BEVERAGE CONTAINER RECYCLING 

CITY/COUNTY PAYMENT PROGRAM 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq, 14581, 
and 42023.1(g). the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) has 
established various payment programs to make payments to qualifying jurisdictions; 
and  

 WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority, CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the administration of the payment programs; and  

WHEREAS, CalRecycle’s procedures for administering payment programs 
require, among other things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution 
certain authorizations related to the administration of the payment program; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove has participated in the past in the 
CalRecycle Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove intends to continue to participate in the 
CalRecycle Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California, hereby approves:   

1. The submittal of an application to CalRecycle for any and all payment programs 
offered; and 

2. The Authorization of the City Manager or her designee with Signature 
Authority to execute all documents necessary to implement and secure 
payment, and  

3. The authorization to be effective until rescinded by the Signature Authority or 
this governing body.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on ______, 2018, the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. _______, passed by the following 
vote: 

 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
      __________________________ 
      Raquel Vasquez, Mayor 
Attest: 
__________________________ 
Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
_________________________ 
James Lough, City Attorney 



 Declaring Results of November 6, 2018 Election 
 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 
 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

Item No. __2___ 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: Shelley Chapel, City Clerk 

 Schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title: Declaring the Results of the November 6, 2018, General 
Municipal Election Certified Results, and Induction and 
Administration of Oath of Office  

 
Recommended Action:  Adopt a Resolution entitled, “Resolution of City Council of the 
City of Lemon Grove, California, Reciting the Fact of the General Municipal Election 
Conducted on November 6, 2018, and Declaring the Results,” and Authorize the City 
Clerk to Induct the Re-Elected City Councilmembers into Office by Reciting the Oath of 
Office. 

Summary:   

Pursuant to the California Elections Code Section 10264; the purpose of this report is to 
present the results of the General Municipal Election held on Tuesday, November 6, 2018, 
and certify by the adoption of the resolution by the City Council accepting said results. 

June 5, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-3580 Calling for the Holding 
of a General Municipal Election for November 6, 2018, for the election of certain officers 
consolidated with the Statewide General Election to be held on the Same Date Pursuant 
to Section 10403 of the California Elections Code. 
 
The following is the list of the candidate who qualified for the ballot, in ballot order: 
 

1. Jerry Jones 
2. Teresa Rosiak 
3. Kamaal Martin 
4. Jennifer L. Mendoza 

 

The Notice of Election was given, and Election was consolidated with the County of San 
Diego Registrar of Voters, the votes cast were received and canvassed as required by law. 
 



 Declaring Results of November 6, 2018 Election 
 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 
 

The General Municipal Election was held on November 6, 2018, for the purpose of 
electing two (2) members of the City Council for four-year terms. The official canvass was 
certified by the San Diego County Registrar of Voters on December 6, 2018.  

 
Based on whole number 14,651 of eligible Lemon Grove registered voters, a total of 8,587 
votes were cast, received and canvassed as required by law.  The votes cast represent a 
52.19% percent voter turnout rate. 
 
The Summary indicates the following results for Member of City Council Seats (2): 
 

CANDIDATE VOTES RECEIVED PERCENTAGE OF VOTES
Jennifer L. Mendoza 4,241 33.60% 
Jerry Jones 3,269 25.90% 
Teresa Rosiak 2,670 21.15% 
Kamaal Martin 2,401 19.02% 

 
The certified canvass of the November 6, 2018 General Municipal Election has been 
completed by the San Diego County Registrar’s Office.  The Registrar declares that 
Jennifer L. Mendoza, and Jerry Jones were elected as Members of the City Council for full 
terms of four years ending November 2022. 
 
Based on the official canvass of the San Diego County Registrar of Voters, it is appropriate 
to adopt a resolution reciting the election results and recording into official record. 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 
Fiscal Impact: The total costs for this election are not yet available, the final billing 
has not been received from the San Diego County Registrar of Voters. 
 
Public Notification: None. 
 
Public Information: 

 None  Newsletter article  Notice to property owners within 300 
ft. 

 Notice published in local newspaper  Neighborhood meeting 

Attachments: 

A. Attachment A – Resolution including Exhibit A Official Canvass 

  



 Declaring Results of November 6, 2018 Election 
 December18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 
 

          Attachment A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 

RESOLUTION OF CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 
CALIFORNIA, RECITING THE FACT OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL 
ELECTION CONDUCTED ON NOVEMBER 6, 2018, AND DECLARING THE 
RESULTS 
 

WHEREAS, a regular general municipal election was conducted in the City of 
Lemon Grove, California on Tuesday, November 6, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Registrar of Voters of the County of San Diego has certified the 
results and the official canvass is attached as "Exhibit A"; and 

 

WHEREAS, California Election Code Section 10264 requires the governing body 
enter the following statements onto its record:  the whole number of votes cast in the city, 
the names of the persons voted for, for what office each person was voted for, and the 
number of votes given at each precinct to each person. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California, hereby: 

 

1. Declares the election results according to certification provided by the County of 
San Diego Registrar of Voters; and 
 

2. Directs the oath of office to be administered to the newly elected officers. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED: On December ___, 2018 the City Council of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California adopted Resolution No. 2018-_____, passed by the following 
vote:  
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:                                                      

           
    ____________________________ 

Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest: 

_______________________ 
Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

Approved as to form:   

        

James Lough, City Attorney 









schapel
Typewritten Text





County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:1 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

GOVERNOR
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1157878
GAVIN NEWSOM DEM 658346 56.86%
JOHN H. COX REP 499532 43.14%

LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 912594
ELENI KOUNALAKIS DEM 570795 62.55%
ED HERNANDEZ DEM 341799 37.45%

SECRETARY OF STATE
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1137586
ALEX PADILLA DEM 676273 59.45%
MARK P. MEUSER REP 461313 40.55%

CONTROLLER
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1131688
BETTY T. YEE DEM 678633 59.97%
KONSTANTINOS RODITIS REP 453055 40.03%

TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1123452
FIONA MA DEM 661376 58.87%
GREG CONLON REP 462076 41.13%

ATTORNEY GENERAL
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1130635
XAVIER BECERRA DEM 662897 58.63%
STEVEN C BAILEY REP 467738 41.37%

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1069185
RICARDO LARA DEM 541730 50.67%
STEVE POIZNER 527455 49.33%

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
4TH DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1088389
MIKE SCHAEFER DEM 602111 55.32%
JOEL  ANDERSON REP 486278 44.68%

UNITED STATES SENATOR
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 995192
DIANNE FEINSTEIN DEM 526628 52.92%
KEVIN DE LEON DEM 468564 47.08%

US REPRESENTATIVE 49TH DIST     
  (SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 442
Precincts Reporting 442 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 225199/307676 73.2  %
Total Votes 219581
MIKE LEVIN DEM 131329 59.81%
DIANE L. HARKEY REP 88252 40.19%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:2 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

US REPRESENTATIVE 50TH DIST     
  (SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 490
Precincts Reporting 490 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 240487/350985 68.5  %
Total Votes 231557
DUNCAN HUNTER REP 118712 51.27%
AMMAR CAMPA-NAJJAR DEM 112845 48.73%

US REPRESENTATIVE 51ST DIST      
 (SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 261
Precincts Reporting 261 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 123663/248681 49.7  %
Total Votes 120491
JUAN  VARGAS DEM 87415 72.55%
JUAN M. HIDALGO JR REP 33076 27.45%

US REPRESENTATIVE 52ND DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 457
Precincts Reporting 457 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 307204/432600 71.0  %
Total Votes 296007
SCOTT  PETERS DEM 188992 63.85%
OMAR QUDRAT REP 107015 36.15%

US REPRESENTATIVE 53RD DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 486
Precincts Reporting 486 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 277371/427358 64.9  %
Total Votes 268794
SUSAN A. DAVIS DEM 185667 69.07%
MORGAN  MURTAUGH REP 83127 30.93%

STATE SENATE 36TH DIST                 
(SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 364
Precincts Reporting 364 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 193157/266747 72.4  %
Total Votes 185611
MARGGIE CASTELLANO DEM 99982 53.87%
PATRICIA PAT BATES REP 85629 46.13%

STATE SENATE 38TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 729
Precincts Reporting 729 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 368130/536189 68.7  %
Total Votes 353437
BRIAN W. JONES REP 187345 53.01%
JEFF  GRIFFITH DEM 166092 46.99%

STATE SENATE 40TH DIST                 
(SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 413
Precincts Reporting 413 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 204950/385236 53.2  %
Total Votes 198869
BEN HUESO DEM 131627 66.19%
LUIS R. VARGAS REP 67242 33.81%

STATE ASSEMBLY 71ST DIST (SAN 
DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 367
Precincts Reporting 367 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 158355/240438 65.9  %
Total Votes 151385
RANDY  VOEPEL REP 91335 60.33%
JAMES  ELIA DEM 60050 39.67%

STATE ASSEMBLY 75TH DIST (SAN 
DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 272
Precincts Reporting 272 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 132381/190746 69.4  %
Total Votes 126506
MARIE WALDRON REP 69493 54.93%
ALAN  GERACI DEM 57013 45.07%

STATE ASSEMBLY 76TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 343
Precincts Reporting 343 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 189001/261133 72.4  %
Total Votes 146196
TASHA  BOERNER H. DEM 79769 54.56%
ELIZABETH WARREN DEM 66427 45.44%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:3 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

STATE ASSEMBLY 77TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 339
Precincts Reporting 339 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 208762/290453 71.9  %
Total Votes 199153
BRIAN  MAIENSCHEIN REP 99880 50.15%
SUNDAY GOVER DEM 99273 49.85%

STATE ASSEMBLY 78TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 304
Precincts Reporting 304 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 207841/292235 71.1  %
Total Votes 197815
TODD  GLORIA DEM 140598 71.08%
MAGGIE J. CAMPBELL REP 57217 28.92%

STATE ASSEMBLY 79TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 287
Precincts Reporting 287 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 162845/268174 60.7  %
Total Votes 155081
SHIRLEY N. WEBER DEM 103533 66.76%
JOHN  MOORE REP 51548 33.24%

STATE ASSEMBLY 80TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 224
Precincts Reporting 224 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 114739/224121 51.2  %
Total Votes 110184
LORENA  GONZALEZ DEM 82621 74.98%
LINCOLN  PICKARD REP 27563 25.02%

CA SUP CT ASSOC JUST CORRIGAN
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 831341
YES 572351 68.85%
NO 258990 31.15%

CA SUP CT ASSOC JUST       
KRUGER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 821076
YES 603531 73.50%
NO 217545 26.50%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
IRION Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 804460
YES 606581 75.40%
NO 197879 24.60%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
HALLER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 800299
YES 590223 73.75%
NO 210076 26.25%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
HUFFMAN Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 803255
YES 542889 67.59%
NO 260366 32.41%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
BENKE Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 807542
YES 594403 73.61%
NO 213139 26.39%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:4 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
AARON Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 804434
YES 582177 72.37%
NO 222257 27.63%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
DATO Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 795705
YES 535184 67.26%
NO 260521 32.74%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
GUERRERO Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 789892
YES 592026 74.95%
NO 197866 25.05%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
MILLER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 792121
YES 502632 63.45%
NO 289489 36.55%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
FIELDS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 792283
YES 542018 68.41%
NO 250265 31.59%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
MCKINSTER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 778436
YES 521754 67.03%
NO 256682 32.97%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
SLOUGH Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 782803
YES 549802 70.24%
NO 233001 29.76%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 3      
THOMPSON Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 774826
YES 519202 67.01%
NO 255624 32.99%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 3      
IKOLA Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 774225
YES 544138 70.28%
NO 230087 29.72%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 3      
GOETHALS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 772048
YES 512064 66.33%
NO 259984 33.67%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:5 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

SUPERIOR COURT OFFICE NO. 37
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 899162
MATT BROWER 550044 61.17%
GARY  KREEP 349118 38.83%

SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC 
INSTRUCTION Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 942297
MARSHALL TUCK 513201 54.46%
TONY K. THURMOND 425096 45.11%

GROSSMONT-CUYAMACA COMM 
COLLEGE TA-1 Total

Number of Precincts 71
Precincts Reporting 71 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 39256/57756 68.0  %
Total Votes 33246
LINDA  CARTWRIGHT 22226 66.85%
JONATHAN JOHN OLSEN 10932 32.88%

GROSSMONT-CUYAMACA COMM 
COLLEGE TA-2 Total

Number of Precincts 70
Precincts Reporting 70 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 40321/57987 69.5  %
Total Votes 31084
DEBBIE JUSTESON 21767 70.03%
BILL EXETER 9208 29.62%

GROSSMONT-CUYAMACA COMM 
COLLEGE TA-5 Total

Number of Precincts 70
Precincts Reporting 70 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29678/51328 57.8  %
Total Votes 23942
BRAD MONROE 14403 60.16%
TERESA A. ROSIAK 9411 39.31%

MIRACOSTA COMM COLLEGE TA-2
Total

Number of Precincts 80
Precincts Reporting 80 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 31862/39969 79.7  %
Total Votes 22036
RICK CASSAR 16534 75.03%
HAROLD FAIRMAN IV 5431 24.65%

MIRACOSTA COMM COLLEGE TA-7
Total

Number of Precincts 32
Precincts Reporting 32 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18836/28432 66.2  %
Total Votes 15290
WILLIAM  FISCHER 8829 57.74%
STEVE HASTY 6387 41.77%

PALOMAR COMM COLLEGE
Total

Number of Precincts 577
Precincts Reporting 577 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 296857/421458 70.4  %
Total Votes 377161
NORMA  MIYAMOTO 91100 24.15%
MARK R. EVILSIZER 86555 22.95%
ROSE MARIE DISHMAN 79773 21.15%
LEE  DULGEROFF 70618 18.72%
AIMEE R. KEITH 48200 12.78%

SAN DIEGO COMM COLLEGE 
DISTRICT A Total

Number of Precincts 613
Precincts Reporting 613 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383923/586316 65.5  %
Total Votes 289885
MARIA NIETO SENOUR 176691 60.95%
DIANE HICKMAN 112211 38.71%

SAN DIEGO COMM COLLEGE 
DISTRICT C Total

Number of Precincts 613
Precincts Reporting 613 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383923/586316 65.5  %
Total Votes 283960
CRAIG MILGRIM 191297 67.37%
LOREN SETH CASUTO 91500 32.22%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:6 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

SAN DIEGO COMM COLLEGE 
DISTRICT E Total

Number of Precincts 613
Precincts Reporting 613 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383923/586316 65.5  %
Total Votes 283621
SEAN ELO 140895 49.68%
DAVID  ALVAREZ 137638 48.53%

SOUTHWESTERN COMM COLLEGE 
DIST SEAT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 257
Precincts Reporting 257 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 142663/255739 55.8  %
Total Votes 122401
LETICIA Y. CAZARES 56939 46.52%
NICOLE  JONES 39993 32.67%
TAMARA  RODRIGUEZ 24993 20.42%

BORREGO SPRINGS UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 1331/1754 75.9  %
Total Votes 1744
JUDY K. COYLE 708 40.60%
VALEEN SZABO 553 31.71%
CURT YAWS 465 26.66%

CARLSBAD UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6471/8648 74.8  %
Total Votes 5044
VERONICA C. WILLIAMS 2657 52.68%
MELANIE BURKHOLDER 2367 46.93%

CORONADO UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8080/10806 74.8  %
Total Votes 14154
LEE PONTES 4472 31.60%
HELEN ANDERSON-CRUZ 4080 28.83%
ESTHER RUTH VALDÉS 4073 28.78%
KYLE R. TUPAS 1445 10.21%

MOUNTAIN EMPIRE UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4559/7079 64.4  %
Total Votes 3415
BERYL BUCHANAN 2034 59.56%
ROB ROMERO 1358 39.77%

MOUNTAIN EMPIRE UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4559/7079 64.4  %
Total Votes 3137
GENE PATTEN 1848 58.91%
STEPHEN M. GREIFZU 1266 40.36%

OCEANSIDE UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 14
Precincts Reporting 14 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6925/11165 62.0  %
Total Votes 5826
ERIC JOYCE 2407 41.31%
ESTEBAN BALDERAS 1674 28.73%
DANIEL A. IMAN 1135 19.48%
OSCAR OSCARIN ORTEGA 591 10.14%

OCEANSIDE UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5006/7841 63.8  %
Total Votes 3993
STACY BEGIN 2596 65.01%
ANN  CORWIN 1377 34.49%

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA B Total

Number of Precincts 30
Precincts Reporting 30 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 21516/27340 78.7  %
Total Votes 17202
GINGER COUVRETTE 7624 44.32%
KEVIN JUZA 5978 34.75%
KIM GARNIER 3576 20.79%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:7 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA C Total

Number of Precincts 24
Precincts Reporting 24 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 16958/23005 73.7  %
Total Votes 12999
T.J. ZANE 6335 48.73%
TERESA TERRY NORWOOD 4467 34.36%
CHARLES SELLERS 2154 16.57%

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA D Total

Number of Precincts 23
Precincts Reporting 23 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 15623/22442 69.6  %
Total Votes 12056
M. O'CONNOR-RATCLIFF 7866 65.25%
STAN RODKIN 4143 34.36%

RAMONA UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 15568/22100 70.4  %
Total Votes 27396
RODGER  DOHM 7552 27.57%
BOB STOODY 7472 27.27%
KIM LASLEY 6871 25.08%
EDWARD L. ANDERSON 5332 19.46%

SAN DIEGO UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT B Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383674/585998 65.5  %
Total Votes 298005
KEVIN RICHARD BEISER 216657 72.70%
TOM KELIINOI 80388 26.98%

SAN DIEGO UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT C Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383674/585998 65.5  %
Total Votes 294290
MICHAEL G. MCQUARY 177300 60.25%
MARCIA NORDSTROM 116022 39.42%

SAN MARCOS UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DIST TRUSTEE AREA E Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 9426/13462 70.0  %
Total Votes 7167
STACY CARLSON 5306 74.03%
CHRISTINA  LINDEN 1839 25.66%

VALLEY CENTER-PAUMA UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 11175/15538 71.9  %
Total Votes 20297
JULIE A. STROH 4617 22.75%
WENDY HEREDIA 4588 22.60%
CRAIG ADAMS 4379 21.57%
JERRY C. FENTON 4274 21.06%
JEANA BOULOS 2360 11.63%

VALLEY CENTER-PAUMA UNIFIED 
SCH DIST (Short Term) Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 11175/15538 71.9  %
Total Votes 8567
MIKE ADAMS 5344 62.38%
GINA ROBERTS 3186 37.19%

VISTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 27
Precincts Reporting 27 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 10553/15658 67.4  %
Total Votes 8252
DEBBIE MORTON 4786 58.00%
CAROL W. HERRERA 3436 41.64%

WARNER UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 975/1327 73.5  %
Total Votes 1615
JEANNEAN ROMBAL 474 29.35%
PJ STONEBURNER 398 24.64%
TERRY L COX 374 23.16%
MELODY  SEES 347 21.49%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:8 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

FALLBROOK UNION HIGH SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 16860/24254 69.5  %
Total Votes 31781
DIANE SUMMERS 6751 21.24%
LITA TABISH 5924 18.64%
ELANA STERLING 5228 16.45%
D.J. CAMPE 4003 12.60%
JAMES  O'DONNELL 3708 11.67%
RICHARD L. GOODLAKE 3579 11.26%
SHERRY Z. LUDWIG 2510 7.90%

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 30
Precincts Reporting 30 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18668/23481 79.5  %
Total Votes 14809
MAUREEN "MO" MUIR 7486 50.55%
AMY FLICKER 7291 49.23%

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 47
Precincts Reporting 47 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18804/23638 79.5  %
Total Votes 14005
MELISSE C. MOSSY 7389 52.76%
RHEA A. STEWART 6579 46.98%

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 16482/22648 72.8  %
Total Votes 12807
KRISTIN GIBSON 5204 40.63%
CHERYL JAMES-WARD 4899 38.25%
LEA WOLF 2660 20.77%

GROSSMONT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DIST TA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 67
Precincts Reporting 67 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 20595/37112 55.5  %
Total Votes 16204
GARY  WOODS 10246 63.23%
PEGGY "LIZ" WEAVER 5909 36.47%

ALPINE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8901/12335 72.2  %
Total Votes 16415
AL GUERRA 4690 28.57%
GLENN DICKIE 4278 26.06%
ERIC WRAY 4212 25.66%
LOUIS RUSSO 3151 19.20%

BONSALL UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8421/11208 75.1  %
Total Votes 14850
LOU RIDDLE 2793 18.81%
ROGER MERCHAT 2651 17.85%
MICHAEL GADDIS 2621 17.65%
ERIC ORTEGA 2342 15.77%
BRIAN C. OLSON 2341 15.76%
TIMOTHY J. COEN 2029 13.66%

BONSALL UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT  (Short Term) Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8421/11208 75.1  %
Total Votes 6087
LARISSA  ANDERSON 3048 50.07%
SYLVIA B TUCKER 3009 49.43%

CAJON VALLEY  UNION SCHOOL 
DIST TRUSTEE AREA NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 30
Precincts Reporting 30 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8486/15253 55.6  %
Total Votes 6724
JILL D. BARTO 4584 68.17%
ANDREW ALEGRIA 2109 31.37%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:9 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CHULA VISTA ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL DIST SEAT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 162
Precincts Reporting 162 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 94129/163480 57.6  %
Total Votes 81660
LESLIE RAY BUNKER 34211 41.89%
FAMELA RAMOS 30034 36.78%
AARON MORENO 17186 21.05%

CHULA VISTA ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL DIST SEAT NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 162
Precincts Reporting 162 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 94129/163480 57.6  %
Total Votes 78806
EDUARDO REYES 46029 58.41%
TANIA A. SOLIS 16463 20.89%
KATE BISHOP 16017 20.32%

DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 31
Precincts Reporting 31 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 21339/28373 75.2  %
Total Votes 37076
K.  FITZPATRICK 7040 18.99%
SCOTT WOODEN 7038 18.98%
DOUG RAFNER 6564 17.70%
LIBBY HELLMANN 6375 17.19%
GEE WAH MOK 6024 16.25%
CHRIS TYLER 3921 10.58%

ENCINITAS UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 73
Precincts Reporting 73 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 40281/50632 79.6  %
Total Votes 73648
MARLA  STRICH 18384 24.96%
EMILY ANDRADE 17746 24.10%
GREGG M SONKEN 15359 20.85%
CHRISTIAN S ADAMS 11373 15.44%
AMY C. GLANCY 10577 14.36%

ESCONDIDO UNION SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 10830/16557 65.4  %
Total Votes 8513
GEORGINE M. TOMASI 4337 50.95%
ZESTY  HARPER 4150 48.75%

ESCONDIDO UNION SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 20
Precincts Reporting 20 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 11747/17581 66.8  %
Total Votes 8918
GARY M. ALTENBURG 5103 57.22%
FRANK HUSTON 3789 42.49%

FALLBROOK UNION ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 28
Precincts Reporting 28 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 16054/23080 69.6  %
Total Votes 28527
SUSAN  LIEBES 6342 22.23%
PATTY DE JONG 5673 19.89%
CARON  LIEBER 5037 17.66%
EREN MELENDEZ 4433 15.54%
PATRICK RUSNELL 4280 15.00%
DARRYL E. BUNTIN 2697 9.45%

LA MESA-SPRING VALLEY SCHOOL
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 86
Precincts Reporting 86 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 50852/78072 65.1  %
Total Votes 98987
REBECCA  MCRAE 21640 21.86%
CHARDÁ FONTENOT 16148 16.31%
MEGAN EPPERSON 14520 14.67%
BRIANNA GARZA 14274 14.42%
STEVE BABBITT 13877 14.02%
JERRY LECKO 12734 12.86%
MATTHEW A. SABLOVE 5572 5.63%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:10 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

LEMON GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 11398/19568 58.2  %
Total Votes 21094
TIMOTHY  SHAW 4448 21.09%
KATIE DEXTER 4181 19.82%
LARRY LOSCHEN 3560 16.88%
YAJAIRA PRECIADO 3509 16.64%
ANGELES G. NELSON 2924 13.86%
KATHERINE NUNCIO 2391 11.33%

NATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 27
Precincts Reporting 27 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 12693/24582 51.6  %
Total Votes 26164
MARIA CASTANEDA 5315 20.31%
MARIA DALLA 4552 17.40%
ALMA SARMIENTO 4505 17.22%
GONZALO J. QUINTERO 4276 16.34%
RANDI MARIE CASTLE 2811 10.74%
THELMA SANCHEZ 2597 9.93%
JILL ANN MILLIGAN 2041 7.80%

RANCHO SANTA FE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 16
Precincts Reporting 16 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 3568/4504 79.2  %
Total Votes 4708
KALI KIM 1429 30.35%
JEE MANGHANI 1209 25.68%
BEN B. BROWN 1104 23.45%
DAN A. DUFRESNE 501 10.64%
GLEN GRIFFIN 460 9.77%

SAN PASQUAL UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 1586/2080 76.3  %
Total Votes 2596
MATTHEW ZDUNICH 594 22.88%
DARA P CZERWONKA 569 21.92%
JOHN MERZ 562 21.65%
DAVID R. HERSEY 545 20.99%
JESSICA ADAMS 323 12.44%

SAN YSIDRO SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 7812/17472 44.7  %
Total Votes 12561
HUMBERTO GURMILAN JR 3728 29.68%
IRENE LOPEZ 3238 25.78%
RODOLFO "RUDY" LOPEZ 2663 21.20%
OLGA ESPINOZA 1803 14.35%
MARCOS DIAZ 1050 8.36%

SOLANA BEACH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 46
Precincts Reporting 46 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 20210/25927 77.9  %
Total Votes 32607
VICKI  KING 10062 30.86%
DEBRA H. SCHADE 9732 29.85%
GAYLIN ALLBAUGH 7904 24.24%
JULIE WESTCOT O'DELL 4815 14.77%

SOUTH BAY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 19965/39434 50.6  %
Total Votes 38608
LOUIS BARRIOS 7380 19.12%
MARY SUSAN DOYLE 6882 17.83%
MARCO O.R. AMARAL 6668 17.27%
DAVID C. LOPEZ 5822 15.08%
ELVIA AGUILAR 5338 13.83%
MELANIE  ELLSWORTH 3608 9.35%
BETH GILLEN 2760 7.15%

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 390
Precincts Reporting 390 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 248429/376979 65.9  %
Total Votes 211930
NATHAN FLETCHER 142785 67.37%
BONNIE  DUMANIS 69145 32.63%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:11 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DISTRICT NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 511
Precincts Reporting 511 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 247258/346312 71.4  %
Total Votes 199313
JIM DESMOND 112267 56.33%
MICHELLE  GOMEZ 87046 43.67%

CITY OF CARLSBAD MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 94
Precincts Reporting 94 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 57678/73890 78.1  %
Total Votes 53337
MATT HALL 29558 55.42%
CORI SCHUMACHER 23649 44.34%

CITY OF CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 18
Precincts Reporting 18 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12468/16484 75.6  %
Total Votes 10785
BARBARA HAMILTON 4130 38.29%
TRACY CARMICHAEL 3893 36.10%
LINDA BREEN 1576 14.61%
DAVID MCGEE 1162 10.77%

CITY OF CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 26
Precincts Reporting 26 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 15070/19466 77.4  %
Total Votes 12901
PRIYA BHAT-PATEL 6572 50.94%
CORRINE BUSTA 6302 48.85%

CITY OF CARLSBAD CITY CLERK
Total

Number of Precincts 94
Precincts Reporting 94 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 57678/73890 78.1  %
Total Votes 39329
BARBARA ENGLESON 38882 98.86%

CITY OF CARLSBAD TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 94
Precincts Reporting 94 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 57678/73890 78.1  %
Total Votes 38948
CRAIG  LINDHOLM 38473 98.78%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 122
Precincts Reporting 122 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 80530/140099 57.5  %
Total Votes 75237
MARY CASILLAS SALAS 54062 71.86%
HECTOR RAUL GASTELUM 21175 28.14%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 25178/38845 64.8  %
Total Votes 23123
JOHN McCANN 11945 51.66%
MARK  BARTLETT 11178 48.34%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 31
Precincts Reporting 31 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18566/32794 56.6  %
Total Votes 16898
JILL M. GALVEZ 8871 52.50%
STEVE STENBERG 8027 47.50%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA CITY 
ATTORNEY Total

Number of Precincts 122
Precincts Reporting 122 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 80530/140099 57.5  %
Total Votes 71834
GLEN GOOGINS 43333 60.32%
ANDREW DEDDEH 28501 39.68%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:12 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF CORONADO CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 8080/10806 74.8  %
Total Votes 13166
BILL SANDKE 3492 26.52%
MARVIN HEINZE 3078 23.38%
MARY D. SIKES 2724 20.69%
PETER J. JENSEN 1924 14.61%
DERIK MUNDT 1558 11.83%

CITY OF DEL MAR CITY COUNCIL
Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 2722/3273 83.2  %
Total Votes 4266
TERRY GAASTERLAND 1453 34.06%
DWIGHT WORDEN 1179 27.64%
BRIAN FLETCHER 1054 24.71%
DANIEL J. QUIRK 568 13.31%

CITY OF EL CAJON MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 86
Precincts Reporting 86 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 26124/44483 58.7  %
Total Votes 23126
BILL WELLS 14803 64.01%
JOEL A. SCALZITTI 6295 27.22%
ROBERT M. WEAVER JR. 1917 8.29%

CITY OF EL CAJON CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 32
Precincts Reporting 32 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 9445/14371 65.7  %
Total Votes 8150
GARY KENDRICK 6826 83.75%
BEN KALASHO 1281 15.72%

CITY OF ENCINITAS MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 33715/42394 79.5  %
Total Votes 30016
CATHERINE BLAKESPEAR 24851 82.79%
JOHN PAUL ELLIOTT 4845 16.14%

CITY OF ENCINITAS CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 16
Precincts Reporting 16 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8851/11094 79.8  %
Total Votes 7822
JODY HUBBARD 4184 53.49%
MARK MUIR 3617 46.24%

CITY OF ENCINITAS CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8886/10991 80.8  %
Total Votes 7763
JOE MOSCA 3959 51.00%
TONY BRANDENBURG 3774 48.62%

CITY OF ESCONDIDO MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 74
Precincts Reporting 74 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 44344/67979 65.2  %
Total Votes 41076
PAUL "MAC" MCNAMARA 21183 51.57%
SAM ABED 19639 47.81%

CITY OF ESCONDIDO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6315/11219 56.3  %
Total Votes 5676
CONSUELO MARTINEZ 3692 65.05%
ED GALLO 1972 34.74%

CITY OF ESCONDIDO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 26
Precincts Reporting 26 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 14326/21185 67.6  %
Total Votes 11767
JOHN MASSON 5899 50.13%
VANESSA VALENZUELA 4529 38.49%
NICOLE A. DOWNEY 1302 11.06%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:13 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 7112/13114 54.2  %
Total Votes 6796
SERGE DEDINA 4607 67.79%
VALERIE ACEVEZ 2142 31.52%

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 7112/13114 54.2  %
Total Votes 11368
PALOMA AGUIRRE 3345 29.42%
ED SPRIGGS 3009 26.47%
DANE  CROSBY 2147 18.89%
DARNISHA HUNTER 1779 15.65%
MO CAMACHO 1056 9.29%

CITY OF LA MESA MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 24320/35341 68.8  %
Total Votes 18639
MARK ARAPOSTATHIS 17986 96.50%

CITY OF LA MESA CITY COUNCIL
Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 24320/35341 68.8  %
Total Votes 36984
AKILAH WEBER 11149 30.15%
BILL BABER 8978 24.28%
GUY MCWHIRTER 8557 23.14%
DAVE MYERS 8214 22.21%

CITY OF LA MESA TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 24320/35341 68.8  %
Total Votes 16830
ELDON "BUD" VOGT 16587 98.56%

CITY OF LEMON GROVE CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 14
Precincts Reporting 14 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 8587/14651 58.6  %
Total Votes 12622
JENNIFER L. MENDOZA 4241 33.60%
JERRY JONES 3269 25.90%
TERESA ROSIAK 2670 21.15%
KAMAAL MARTIN 2401 19.02%

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12776/24643 51.8  %
Total Votes 11971
A SOTELO-SOLIS 5506 45.99%
D DELOSSANTOS YAMANE 3468 28.97%
R. MITCHEL BEAUCHAMP 1576 13.17%
DANIEL PEREZ 1383 11.55%

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 12776/24643 51.8  %
Total Votes 19615
RON MORRISON 4966 25.32%
MONA ALVARADO-RIOS 4844 24.70%
JOSE RODRIGUEZ 4770 24.32%
CANDY MORALES 2843 14.49%
SHERRY GOGUE 1545 7.88%
JAMES KIM III 627 3.20%

CITY OF OCEANSIDE CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 26
Precincts Reporting 26 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12937/19466 66.5  %
Total Votes 11415
ESTHER C. SANCHEZ 4137 36.24%
CHUCK LOWERY 3808 33.36%
SUSAN CUSTER 2340 20.50%
MICHAEL M. ODEGAARD 1094 9.58%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:14 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF OCEANSIDE CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 29
Precincts Reporting 29 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 14798/22027 67.2  %
Total Votes 13043
CHRIS RODRIGUEZ 5610 43.01%
DANA CORSO 3449 26.44%
TERRY W. JOHNSON SR. 1941 14.88%
LARRY KORNIT 1248 9.57%
KRISTOPHER R. KAGAN 760 5.83%

CITY OF OCEANSIDE TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 113
Precincts Reporting 113 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 65312/93911 69.5  %
Total Votes 51745
VICTOR ROY 28869 55.79%
RAFE E. TRICKEY JR. 22588 43.65%

CITY OF POWAY MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 22430/30171 74.3  %
Total Votes 20687
STEVE VAUS 12895 62.33%
BRIAN EDMONSTON 3929 18.99%
EMILY JOHNSON 3169 15.32%
YURI BOHLEN 634 3.06%

CITY OF POWAY CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5362/7329 73.2  %
Total Votes 4653
DAVE GROSCH 2257 48.51%
JON RYAN 1181 25.38%
PETE NEILD 863 18.55%
JOHN CARSON 343 7.37%

CITY OF POWAY CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5813/7836 74.2  %
Total Votes 4881
JOHN MULLIN 3140 64.33%
JOE CALABRESE 1723 35.30%

CITY OF POWAY CITY COUNCIL 
SHORT TERM Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 22430/30171 74.3  %
Total Votes 18554
CAYLIN FRANK 9338 50.33%
TORREY POWERS 6811 36.71%
TONY T. RUSSO 2331 12.56%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 89
Precincts Reporting 89 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 63886/90354 70.7  %
Total Votes 55955
JENNIFER CAMPBELL 32439 57.97%
LORIE ZAPF 23516 42.03%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 79
Precincts Reporting 79 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 39384/76541 51.5  %
Total Votes 34949
MONICA MONTGOMERY 20180 57.74%
MYRTLE COLE 14769 42.26%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 6 Total

Number of Precincts 79
Precincts Reporting 79 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 54391/81157 67.0  %
Total Votes 46527
CHRIS CATE 25022 53.78%
TOMMY HOUGH 21505 46.22%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:15 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 8 Total

Number of Precincts 80
Precincts Reporting 80 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 33513/70729 47.4  %
Total Votes 29351
VIVIAN MORENO 14950 50.94%
ANTONIO MARTINEZ 14401 49.06%

CITY OF SAN MARCOS MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 52
Precincts Reporting 52 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 31715/45584 69.6  %
Total Votes 28504
REBECCA JONES 14569 51.11%
CHRIS ORLANDO 12284 43.10%
BRADLEY ZINK 1595 5.60%

CITY OF SAN MARCOS CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 7
Precincts Reporting 7 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4483/7491 59.8  %
Total Votes 3783
MARIA NUNEZ 1881 49.72%
CRAIG GARCIA 1431 37.83%
CLIFF IRELAND 465 12.29%

CITY OF SAN MARCOS CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 18
Precincts Reporting 18 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 10658/13979 76.2  %
Total Votes 9192
RANDY WALTON 4754 51.72%
MIKE SANNELLA 2958 32.18%
ERIC FLODINE 1457 15.85%

CITY OF SANTEE CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6004/8623 69.6  %
Total Votes 5554
ROB MCNELIS 3107 55.94%
E ANDRADE-HEYMSFIELD 2422 43.61%

CITY OF SANTEE CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5506/8238 66.8  %
Total Votes 4855
RONN HALL 3316 68.30%
RUDY REYES 1510 31.10%

CITY OF SANTEE CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 3 - SHORT TERM Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5886/8573 68.7  %
Total Votes 5252
LAURA KOVAL 3099 59.01%
ZACK GIANINO 1588 30.24%
LYNDA MARROKAL 555 10.57%

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 7229/9004 80.3  %
Total Votes 11099
KRISTI BECKER 3886 35.01%
KELLY HARLESS 3628 32.69%
CRAIG NELSON 1826 16.45%
VALERI PAUL 879 7.92%
SHAWN  MCCLONDON 852 7.68%

CITY OF VISTA MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29329/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 27021
JUDY RITTER 13425 49.68%
JOE GREEN 10819 40.04%
DOMINIC D'AGOSTINI 2683 9.93%

CITY OF VISTA CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4656/8302 56.1  %
Total Votes 4131
CORINNA CONTRERAS 2088 50.54%
JOHN J. AGUILERA 2022 48.95%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:16 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF VISTA CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 20
Precincts Reporting 20 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8781/12566 69.9  %
Total Votes 7661
JOHN B. FRANKLIN 4015 52.41%
TAZHEEN NIZAM 3082 40.23%
JAMES STUCKRAD 548 7.15%

ALPINE COMMUNITY PLANNING 
AREA GROUP Total

Number of Precincts 19
Precincts Reporting 19 100.0  %
Vote For 7
Times Counted 8396/11701 71.8  %
Total Votes 26547
JAMES J. EASTERLING 3875 14.60%
GEORGE P BARNETT 3573 13.46%
ALBERT V. HAVEN 3321 12.51%
LOUIS RUSSO 3196 12.04%
JENIFER L. SWANSON 3189 12.01%
GLENDA L. ARCHER 2791 10.51%
JUSTIN M. JOHNSTON 2525 9.51%
RICHARD M SALDANO JR 2224 8.38%
MARY HARRIS 1732 6.52%

ALPINE FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 12
Precincts Reporting 12 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 7431/10247 72.5  %
Total Votes 12637
JIM EASTERLING 4409 34.89%
PATRICK D. PRICE 2520 19.94%
BARON BARRY WILLIS 2396 18.96%
MARTIN MARUGG 2060 16.30%
RICHARD M SALDANO JR 1208 9.56%

DEER SPRINGS FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 19
Precincts Reporting 19 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 6440/8595 74.9  %
Total Votes 10848
JEAN FRANK SLAUGHTER 3263 30.08%
BRIAN SHIELD HOLLEY 2666 24.58%
JAMES E. GORDON 2530 23.32%
ROBERT E. OSBY 2368 21.83%

FALLBROOK COMMUNITY 
PLANNING AREA GROUP Total

Number of Precincts 35
Precincts Reporting 35 100.0  %
Vote For 7
Times Counted 18288/25248 72.4  %
Total Votes 53835
JIM RUSSELL 9106 16.91%
MARK MERVICH 7053 13.10%
VICTORIA STOVER 6403 11.89%
KIM MURPHY 6211 11.54%
GUY R. HOWARD 6141 11.41%
EILEEN DELANEY 6112 11.35%
STEPHEN E BROWN 4524 8.40%
JERRY KALMAN 4294 7.98%
RICHARD J. BILLBURG 3805 7.07%

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 49
Precincts Reporting 49 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 21937/30233 72.6  %
Total Votes 30396
KATE SCHWARTZ 10836 35.65%
JENNIFER  JEFFRIES 7887 25.95%
HOWARD SALMON 7207 23.71%
ARMANDO J. TELLES 4369 14.37%

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY 
DISTRICT DIV NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 3
Precincts Reporting 3 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1689/2695 62.7  %
Total Votes 1191
KENNETH  ENDTER 720 60.45%
JOHN COULTER NEWMAN 467 39.21%

GROSSMONT HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 391
Precincts Reporting 391 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 186354/283306 65.8  %
Total Votes 210595
GLORIA A. CHADWICK 92171 43.77%
RANDY LENAC 75213 35.71%
ED MARTINEZ 42539 20.20%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:17 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

HELIX WATER DISTRICT DIV NO. 1 
  (Short Term) Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 17441/27983 62.3  %
Total Votes 13642
DAN MCMILLAN 6025 44.17%
TABITHA REMUND-BURKE 4109 30.12%
JAMES STIERINGER 3468 25.42%

JULIAN-CUYAMACA FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 1945/2453 79.3  %
Total Votes 2449
MICHAEL MENGHINI 936 38.22%
EVELINA "EVA" HATCH 737 30.09%
PATRICIA PAT LANDIS 657 26.83%

LAKESIDE FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 42
Precincts Reporting 42 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 24878/37232 66.8  %
Total Votes 47362
TIM ROBLES 13081 27.62%
ROBERT "BOB" ROBESON 10476 22.12%
PETER A. LIEBIG 9011 19.03%
MIKE HAWORTH 8322 17.57%
RONALD RON KASPER 6365 13.44%

NORTH COUNTY FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 45
Precincts Reporting 45 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 21086/29111 72.4  %
Total Votes 22134
JOHN VAN DOORN 8779 39.66%
KENNETH E MUNSON 8060 36.41%
JOHN A DEL-ZIO 5241 23.68%

PALOMAR HEALTH
Total

Number of Precincts 360
Precincts Reporting 360 100.0  %
Vote For 4
Times Counted 199775/283288 70.5  %
Total Votes 445399
LINDA CAROL GREER 66911 15.02%
RICHARD C. ENGEL 65526 14.71%
LAURIE EDWARDS-TATE 61522 13.81%
JOHN CLARK 53887 12.10%
DALE BARDIN 53029 11.91%
HANS CHRISTIAN SISON 52470 11.78%
VANESSA GUTIERREZ 49110 11.03%
CHRISTOPHER K. LEE 32964 7.40%
CODY JAMES RYAN 9017 2.02%

PAUMA VALLEY COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 2
Precincts Reporting 2 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 345/445 77.5  %
Total Votes 660
SAMUEL R LOGAN 176 26.67%
BILL JACOBS 160 24.24%
CLARENCE W. WINN 157 23.79%
RICHARD HENRY NOLAN 151 22.88%

RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT DIV NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1953/2705 72.2  %
Total Votes 1375
CARL  RINDFLEISCH 770 56.00%
BILL STEWART 598 43.49%

RAMONA MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT DIV NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 8
Precincts Reporting 8 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 3539/4774 74.1  %
Total Votes 2570
JAMES HICKLE 1408 54.79%
JAMES  ZENOVIC 1148 44.67%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:18 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

RANCHO SANTA FE FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 54
Precincts Reporting 54 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 15390/20358 75.6  %
Total Votes 17187
JOHN C. TANNER 7756 45.13%
TUCKER  STINE 6580 38.28%
DOUGLAS S. DILL 2801 16.30%

SAN MIGUEL CONSOLIDATED FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF Total

Number of Precincts 90
Precincts Reporting 90 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 45059/70333 64.1  %
Total Votes 75668
THERESA MCKENNA 25332 33.48%
JIM EK 19682 26.01%
MICHAEL VACIO 19674 26.00%
WILLIAM A. KIEL II 10787 14.26%

SOUTH BAY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
DIV NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5704/11548 49.4  %
Total Votes 4934
STEVE CASTANEDA 3813 77.28%
PAUL CRAWFORD 1098 22.25%

SOUTH BAY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
DIV NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 7748/14250 54.4  %
Total Votes 6613
HECTOR M. MARTINEZ 4301 65.04%
JERRY  THOMAS 1164 17.60%
M. KEVIN O'NEILL 1129 17.07%

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DIV NO. 2
Total

Number of Precincts 39
Precincts Reporting 39 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18849/28625 65.8  %
Total Votes 16051
ROCKY J. CHÁVEZ 5766 35.92%
JIM S. BURLEW 5195 32.37%
LAURA MITCHELL 5026 31.31%

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DIV NO. 4
Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12208/21069 57.9  %
Total Votes 9502
GEORGE W. COULTER 5728 60.28%
ERUBEY LOPEZ 3728 39.23%

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DIV NO. 6
Total

Number of Precincts 46
Precincts Reporting 46 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 25776/33226 77.6  %
Total Votes 18538
TRACY M. YOUNGER 9484 51.16%
JIM DAGOSTINO 8987 48.48%

VALLE DE ORO COMMUNITY 
PLANNING AREA GROUP Total

Number of Precincts 38
Precincts Reporting 38 100.0  %
Vote For 7
Times Counted 19187/26585 72.2  %
Total Votes 51369
DAVID R. STEELE 7077 13.78%
LORI M. MYERS 6678 13.00%
W. TINSLEY BECKER 5950 11.58%
CATHERINE G. GERHART 5758 11.21%
ALYSSA BURLEY 5695 11.09%
KYLE HERMANN 5662 11.02%
MARK SCHUPPERT 5478 10.66%
CHARLES R. KOSSMAN 5319 10.35%
KOUWTHAR  COOKIE 3541 6.89%

VALLEY CENTER PARKS AND 
RECREATION Total

Number of Precincts 14
Precincts Reporting 14 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8619/11876 72.6  %
Total Votes 13637
SHANNON LAIRD 3628 26.60%
KATHY MACKENZIE 3616 26.52%
BILL TROK 3193 23.41%
JON VICK 3146 23.07%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:19 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

WHISPERING PALMS COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 1511/1867 80.9  %
Total Votes 1916
WILLIAM W. HAYNOR 649 33.87%
AL PANTON 533 27.82%
SHANNON BISZANTZ 387 20.20%
VIVIAN LEE FORD 342 17.85%

PROP 1  AUTHORIZES BONDS TO 
FUND HOUSING PGMS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1116803
YES 590056 52.83%
NO 526747 47.17%

PROP 2  AUTHORIZES BONDS TO 
FUND EXIST. HOUSING PGM Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1116646
YES 699283 62.62%
NO 417363 37.38%

PROP 3  AUTHORIZES BONDS FUND
PROJECTS WTR Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1078798
NO 549979 50.98%
YES 528819 49.02%

PROP 4  AUTHORIZES BONDS 
FUNDING CONST. HOSP. Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1106435
YES 667874 60.36%
NO 438561 39.64%

PROP 5  CHANGES REQ. CERTAIN 
PROPERTY OWNERS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1097039
NO 613573 55.93%
YES 483466 44.07%

PROP 6  ELIMINATES ROAD 
REPAIR/TRANS. FUNDING Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1136393
YES 578961 50.95%
NO 557432 49.05%

PROP 7  DAYLIGHT SAVING TIME
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1110437
YES 755276 68.02%
NO 355161 31.98%

PROP 8  REGULATES KIDNEY 
DIALYSIS CLINICS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1113740
NO 665096 59.72%
YES 448644 40.28%

PROP 10  ENACT RENT CONTROL
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1120991
NO 688240 61.40%
YES 432751 38.60%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:20 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

PROP 11  PRIVATE-SECTOR EMER. 
AMBULANCE Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1110723
YES 693218 62.41%
NO 417505 37.59%

PROP 12  ESTABLISHES NEW 
STANDARDS FARM ANIMALS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1105119
YES 679513 61.49%
NO 425606 38.51%

MEASURE A- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
    CH. AMD. "CLEAN-UP" Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1021086
YES 753899 73.83%
NO 267187 26.17%

MEASURE B- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
     CH. AMD. REP. UNINC. AREAS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 991677
YES 592706 59.77%
NO 398971 40.23%

MEASURE C- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
CH. AMD. GOOD GOVT. Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1007910
YES 704163 69.86%
NO 303747 30.14%

MEASURE D- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
CH. AMD. REQ. RUN-OFF ELECTS. Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1010425
YES 641536 63.49%
NO 368889 36.51%

MEASURE E- CITY OF SAN DIEGO    
SOCCER CITY Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 466281
NO 314427 67.43%
YES 151854 32.57%

MEASURE G- CITY OF SAN DIEGO   
 SDSU WEST Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 464229
YES 252839 54.46%
NO 211390 45.54%

MEASURE J- CITY OF SAN DIEGO    
CH. AMD. DISC. BUSINESS Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 431932
YES 368481 85.31%
NO 63451 14.69%

MEASURE K- CITY OF SAN DIEGO  
CH. AMD. LIMIT 2-FOUR YR TRMS Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 439651
YES 382684 87.04%
NO 56967 12.96%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:21 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE L- CITY OF SAN DIEGO   
CH. AMD. ETHICS-COMP. Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 434179
YES 340828 78.50%
NO 93351 21.50%

MEASURE M- CITY OF SAN DIEGO  
 CH. AMD. APPT. AUDIT COM Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 415208
YES 248018 59.73%
NO 167190 40.27%

MEASURE N- CITY OF SAN DIEGO   
  REINSTATE DISABILITY Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 438481
YES 343070 78.24%
NO 95411 21.76%

MEASURE Q- CITY OF CHULA 
VISTA  CANNABIS BUS. TAX Total

Number of Precincts 122
Precincts Reporting 122 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 80462/140099 57.4  %
Total Votes 75572
YES 48607 64.32%
NO 26965 35.68%

MEASURE P- CITY OF DEL MAR     
CH. AMD. CITY'S GENERAL PLAN Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 2715/3273 83.0  %
Total Votes 2350
YES 1385 58.94%
NO 965 41.06%

MEASURE R- CITY OF DEL MAR       
  SHORELINE PROT. AREA Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 2715/3273 83.0  %
Total Votes 2437
NO 1988 81.58%
YES 449 18.42%

MEASURE T- CITY OF DEL MAR   
PROPOSING ORD. 939 Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 2715/3273 83.0  %
Total Votes 2374
YES 1898 79.95%
NO 476 20.05%

MEASURE U- CITY OF ENCINITAS   
HOUSING PLAN UPDATE 2018 Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 33650/42394 79.4  %
Total Votes 30002
NO 15882 52.94%
YES 14120 47.06%

MEASURE V- CITY OF LA MESA     
CITY TAX CANNABIS Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 24284/35341 68.7  %
Total Votes 21651
YES 15862 73.26%
NO 5789 26.74%

MEASURE W- CITY OF NATIONAL 
CITY   RENT CONTROL Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12756/24643 51.8  %
Total Votes 12075
NO 6115 50.64%
YES 5960 49.36%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:22 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE X- CITY OF OCEANSIDE  
ONE-HALF CENT SALES TAX Total

Number of Precincts 113
Precincts Reporting 113 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 65231/93911 69.5  %
Total Votes 61299
YES 34133 55.68%
NO 27166 44.32%

MEASURE Y- CITY OF OCEANSIDE  
AMEND. LAND USE ELEMENT Total

Number of Precincts 113
Precincts Reporting 113 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 65231/93911 69.5  %
Total Votes 60957
NO 32228 52.87%
YES 28729 47.13%

MEASURE Z- CITY OF VISTA    
CITIZEN'S MED. CANNABIS Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29306/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 27689
YES 14900 53.81%
NO 12789 46.19%

MEASURE AA- CITY OF VISTA    
CANNABIS BUS. TAX Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29306/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 26997
YES 14210 52.64%
NO 12787 47.36%

MEASURE BB- CITY OF VISTA      
CANNABIS BUS. ORD. Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29306/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 26776
NO 14346 53.58%
YES 12430 46.42%

MEASURE CC- SOUTHWESTERN CC
DIST   - TERM LIMITS Total

Number of Precincts 257
Precincts Reporting 257 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 142469/255739 55.7  %
Total Votes 131635
YES 116125 88.22%
NO 15510 11.78%

MEASURE DD- SWEETWATER UN 
HS DIST   $403M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 248
Precincts Reporting 248 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 134437/244968 54.9  %
Total Votes 125113
YES 86510 69.15%
NO 38603 30.85%

MEASURE EE- BONSALL UN SCHL   
$38M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8400/11208 74.9  %
Total Votes 7812
NO 4491 57.49%
YES 3321 42.51%

MEASURE GG- BORREGO SPGS UN 
SCHL $8.6M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1325/1754 75.5  %
Total Votes 1259
YES 835 66.32%
NO 424 33.68%

MEASURE HH- CARLSBAD UN 
SCHL   $265M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 37496/48721 77.0  %
Total Votes 34260
YES 21416 62.51%
NO 12844 37.49%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:23 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE JJ- MTN EMPIRE UN 
SCHL   $15M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4553/7079 64.3  %
Total Votes 4210
YES 2332 55.39%
NO 1878 44.61%

MEASURE H- SD UN SCHL DIST    
TERM LIMITS Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383466/585998 65.4  %
Total Votes 333005
YES 260232 78.15%
NO 72773 21.85%

MEASURE YY- SD UN SCHL DIST     
$3.5B BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383466/585998 65.4  %
Total Votes 344573
YES 224262 65.08%
NO 120311 34.92%

MEASURE LL- VISTA UN SCHL     
$247M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 108
Precincts Reporting 108 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 54990/80164 68.6  %
Total Votes 50864
YES 32661 64.21%
NO 18203 35.79%

MEASURE MM- DEL MAR UN SCHL 
$186M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 31
Precincts Reporting 31 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 21294/28373 75.1  %
Total Votes 19252
YES 11771 61.14%
NO 7481 38.86%

MEASURE NN- SOUTH BAY UN 
SCHL   $18M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 19927/39434 50.5  %
Total Votes 18274
YES 12464 68.21%
NO 5810 31.79%

MEASURE VV- CHULA VISTA ELEM
$150M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 162
Precincts Reporting 162 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 94036/163480 57.5  %
Total Votes 87434
YES 59235 67.75%
NO 28199 32.25%

MEASURE S- SANTEE SCHL DIST   
$15.37M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 51
Precincts Reporting 51 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 25058/36240 69.1  %
Total Votes 22713
YES 13778 60.66%
NO 8935 39.34%

MEASURE O- OTAY MESA EIFD    
BOND ISSUANCE (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4552/8930 51.0  %
Total Votes 4206
YES 3164 75.23%
NO 1042 24.77%

MEASURE PP- BORREGO SPR FIRE 
SPECIAL PARCEL TAX (REQ 2/3) Total

Number of Precincts 2
Precincts Reporting 2 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1235/1602 77.1  %
Total Votes 1183
YES 668 56.47%
NO 515 43.53%



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:24 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE QQ- JULIAN-CUY FIRE 
PROT DIST   ANNUAL BENEFIT FEE Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1943/2453 79.2  %
Total Votes 1812
NO 976 53.86%
YES 836 46.14%

MEASURE RR- RINCON RANCH CSD
 SPECIAL TAX (REQ 2/3) Total

Number of Precincts 1
Precincts Reporting 1 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 81/115 70.4  %
Total Votes 76
YES 46 60.53%
NO 30 39.47%

MEASURE SS- VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE SPECIAL TAX (REQ 2/3) Total

Number of Precincts 15
Precincts Reporting 15 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8247/11379 72.5  %
Total Votes 7767
YES 4512 58.09%
NO 3255 41.91%





 County of San Diego
 Gubernatorial General Election

 November 6, 2018
 Official Results - CITY OF LEMON GROVE

 Date:12/10/18
 Time:14:24:18

 Page:1 of 3

 Jurisdiction Wide
     504500-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     504610-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     504800-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     505100-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     505300-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     505350-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     505500-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     505710-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     506000-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     506200-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     506400-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     506500-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     507000-LEMON GROVE
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     999524-LEMON GROVE-VBM
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
     Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total

 Reg. Voters  Cards Cast  % 
 Turnout

 TURN OUT

 1037 364 35.10%
 1037 628 60.56%
 1037 992 95.66%

 815 250 30.67%
 815 503 61.72%
 815 753 92.39%

 1359 588 43.27%
 1359 908 66.81%
 1359 1496 110.08%

 899 462 51.39%
 899 636 70.75%
 899 1098 122.14%

 828 440 53.14%
 828 601 72.58%
 828 1041 125.72%

 1133 530 46.78%
 1133 847 74.76%
 1133 1377 121.54%

 988 514 52.02%
 988 701 70.95%
 988 1215 122.98%

 1055 481 45.59%
 1055 809 76.68%
 1055 1290 122.27%

 1192 594 49.83%
 1192 928 77.85%
 1192 1522 127.68%

 1330 512 38.50%
 1330 976 73.38%
 1330 1488 111.88%

 1270 536 42.20%
 1270 1081 85.12%
 1270 1617 127.32%

 1299 546 42.03%
 1299 923 71.05%
 1299 1469 113.09%

 1231 589 47.85%
 1231 953 77.42%
 1231 1542 125.26%

 215 0 0.00%
 215 264 122.79%
 215 264 122.79%

 14651 6406 43.72%
 14651 10758 73.43%
 14651 17164 117.15%



 County of San Diego
 Gubernatorial General Election

 November 6, 2018
 Official Results - CITY OF LEMON GROVE

 Date:12/10/18
 Time:14:24:18

 Page:2 of 3

 Jurisdiction Wide
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total

 Reg. Voters  Times 
 Counted

 Total Votes  JERRY JONES  TERESA ROSIAK

 CITY OF LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

 1037 182 208 45 21.63%  44  21.15%
 1037 314 471 118 25.05%  76  16.14%
 1037 496 679 163 24.01%  120  17.67%

 815 125 163 35 21.47%  50  30.67%
 815 251 382 94 24.61%  67  17.54%
 815 376 545 129 23.67%  117  21.47%

 1359 294 373 92 24.66%  82  21.98%
 1359 455 687 156 22.71%  129  18.78%
 1359 749 1060 248 23.40%  211  19.91%

 899 231 286 84 29.37%  72  25.17%
 899 319 472 116 24.58%  103  21.82%
 899 550 758 200 26.39%  175  23.09%
 828 220 306 88 28.76%  76  24.84%
 828 301 478 117 24.48%  106  22.18%
 828 521 784 205 26.15%  182  23.21%

 1133 265 400 87 21.75%  107  26.75%
 1133 424 662 186 28.10%  163  24.62%
 1133 689 1062 273 25.71%  270  25.42%

 988 257 362 101 27.90%  78  21.55%
 988 352 554 142 25.63%  134  24.19%
 988 609 916 243 26.53%  212  23.14%

 1055 241 326 80 24.54%  68  20.86%
 1055 404 637 183 28.73%  140  21.98%
 1055 645 963 263 27.31%  208  21.60%
 1192 297 397 107 26.95%  77  19.40%
 1192 464 711 205 28.83%  138  19.41%
 1192 761 1108 312 28.16%  215  19.40%
 1330 255 389 113 29.05%  83  21.34%
 1330 488 724 178 24.59%  143  19.75%
 1330 743 1113 291 26.15%  226  20.31%
 1270 268 352 82 23.30%  73  20.74%
 1270 541 833 222 26.65%  157  18.85%
 1270 809 1185 304 25.65%  230  19.41%
 1299 273 374 94 25.13%  91  24.33%
 1299 462 718 180 25.07%  150  20.89%
 1299 735 1092 274 25.09%  241  22.07%
 1231 295 439 99 22.55%  82  18.68%
 1231 477 741 215 29.01%  143  19.30%
 1231 772 1180 314 26.61%  225  19.07%

 215 0 0 0 -  0 -
 215 132 177 50 28.25%  38  21.47%
 215 132 177 50 28.25%  38  21.47%

 14651 3203 4375 1107 25.30%  983  22.47%
 14651 5384 8247 2162 26.22%  1687  20.46%
 14651 8587 12622 3269 25.90%  2670  21.15%



 County of San Diego
 Gubernatorial General Election

 November 6, 2018
 Official Results - CITY OF LEMON GROVE

 Date:12/10/18
 Time:14:24:18

 Page:3 of 3

 Jurisdiction Wide
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total
         Polls Ballots
         Mail Ballots
         Total

 KAMAAL MARTIN  JENNIFER L. 
 MENDOZA

 Write-In Votes

 CITY OF LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

 47  22.60% 72 34.62% 0 0.00%
 101  21.44% 176 37.37% 0 0.00%
 148  21.80% 248 36.52% 0 0.00%

 24  14.72% 52 31.90% 2 1.23%
 67  17.54% 154 40.31% 0 0.00%
 91  16.70% 206 37.80% 2 0.37%
 64  17.16% 135 36.19% 0 0.00%

 137  19.94% 261 37.99% 4 0.58%
 201  18.96% 396 37.36% 4 0.38%

 42  14.69% 86 30.07% 2 0.70%
 92  19.49% 161 34.11% 0 0.00%

 134  17.68% 247 32.59% 2 0.26%
 54  17.65% 87 28.43% 1 0.33%
 85  17.78% 169 35.36% 1 0.21%

 139  17.73% 256 32.65% 2 0.26%
 70  17.50% 132 33.00% 4 1.00%

 103  15.56% 208 31.42% 2 0.30%
 173  16.29% 340 32.02% 6 0.56%

 73  20.17% 109 30.11% 1 0.28%
 106  19.13% 171 30.87% 1 0.18%
 179  19.54% 280 30.57% 2 0.22%

 73  22.39% 105 32.21% 0 0.00%
 138  21.66% 175 27.47% 1 0.16%
 211  21.91% 280 29.08% 1 0.10%

 78  19.65% 135 34.01% 0 0.00%
 125  17.58% 241 33.90% 2 0.28%
 203  18.32% 376 33.94% 2 0.18%

 63  16.20% 130 33.42% 0 0.00%
 153  21.13% 250 34.53% 0 0.00%
 216  19.41% 380 34.14% 0 0.00%

 75  21.31% 121 34.38% 1 0.28%
 156  18.73% 288 34.57% 10 1.20%
 231  19.49% 409 34.51% 11 0.93%

 69  18.45% 119 31.82% 1 0.27%
 115  16.02% 271 37.74% 2 0.28%
 184  16.85% 390 35.71% 3 0.27%
 110  25.06% 147 33.49% 1 0.23%
 152  20.51% 228 30.77% 3 0.40%
 262  22.20% 375 31.78% 4 0.34%

 0  - 0 - 0 -
 29  16.38% 58 32.77% 2 1.13%
 29  16.38% 58 32.77% 2 1.13%

 842  19.25% 1430 32.69% 13 0.30%
 1559  18.90% 2811 34.09% 28 0.34%
 2401  19.02% 4241 33.60% 41 0.32%



 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. __3__  

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: Development Services Department 

Staff Contact: Mike Viglione, Associate Planner 

 mviglione@lemongrove.ca.gov  

Item Title: Public Hearing to consider Ordinance No. 2018-450, Zoning 

Amendment ZA1-800-0002 Separation Findings for Discretionary 

Permits 

 

Recommended Action: Conduct the Public Hearing, and Introduce Ordinance No. 

2018-450 
 

Summary: 

Municipal Code Title 17 Zoning and Title 18 Citywide Regulations require large family 

daycares, medical marijuana dispensaries (MMDs), alcoholic beverage related businesses 

requiring a Conditional Use Permit, beekeeping and adult entertainment uses to observe 

distance separations from specifically listed land uses as a condition of establishment. A 

separation finding must be made by the decision body at the time of final decision. The 

proposed Zoning Amendment would allow an applicant to obtain the required separation 

finding prior to preparing costly plans and reports and prior to final decision. Land uses 

or land use applications initiated after the filing of a separation finding application would 

not be grounds for denial. Planning Commission recommended that the City Council 

approve the proposed amendment at the November 26, 2018 Planning Commission 

meeting. 
  

Background:  

During the April 17, 2018 City Council meeting, the City Council directed staff to present 

alternatives for making separation findings prior to final decision by the Development 

Services Director, Planning Commission and City Council. At the July 17, 2018 City 

Council meeting, the City Council reviewed four alternatives and directed staff to prepare 

a draft ordinance providing a process for making early separation findings. At the 

September 24, 2018 Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commission reviewed 

mailto:mviglione@lemongrove.ca.gov


 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 
 

the alternatives and recommended City Council approval of the draft ordinance with 

minor revisions. 

During the October 16, 2018 City Council meeting, the City Council expressed concern 

about the timing of the establishment of land uses or submittal of land use applications, 

and the potential effect upon separation findings. The City Council directed staff to add 

language to the ordinance clarifying how competing applications would be prioritized. 

The City Council asked staff to return to the Planning Commission for review of the 

amended ordinance, and to provide a subsequent recommendation to the City Council. 

Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on November 26, 2018 to consider the 

revised Zoning Amendment and resolved unanimously to recommend City Council 

approval. 

Regulatory Background 

The Lemon Grove Municipal Code (LGMC) requires large family daycares, medical 

marijuana dispensaries (MMDs), beekeeping uses, alcoholic beverage related businesses 

requiring a Conditional Use Permit and adult entertainment uses to observe distance 

separations from specific land uses prior to establishment. In summary: 

1. Large Family Daycares require a Minor Use Permit and cannot be established 

within 1,000 feet of another such facility (LGMC Section 17.24.060(D)(3) 

Accessory buildings and uses -Daycares). 

2. Medical Marijuana Dispensaries require a Zoning Clearance followed by a 

Conditional Use Permit and generally cannot be established within 1,000 feet of 

public parks, playgrounds, licensed day care facilities, schools, alcohol and 

substance abuse treatment centers, or other MMDs (LGMC Chapter 17.32 Medical 

Marijuana Regulations). 

3. Beekeeping uses require a Beekeeping Permit, which is similar to a Zoning 

Clearance. Beehives must be 25 feet from private or public streets and neighboring 

dwelling units and 15 feet from side or rear lot lines. A 100 foot separation from 

neighboring dwelling units is required if more than two hives are proposed. 

Beehives must also be 100 feet from the border of sensitive areas frequented by 

populations susceptible to stinging incidents. Examples of sensitive areas include 

schools, playgrounds, picnic areas, outdoor sports facilities, daycare centers, 

senior care facilities, medical facilities, and animal-boarding facilities (LGMC 

Section 18.16.060 Exotic animals and beekeeping). 

4. Alcoholic beverage sales uses require a Conditional Use Permit unless the use 

qualifies as incidental under specific provisions of the LGMC. Incidental uses are 

limited to large grocery stores and pharmacies, restaurants with table service, and 

alcoholic beverage manufacturers. Uses requiring a Conditional Use Permit for 

sales of alcoholic beverages for off-site consumption cannot be within 500 feet of  



 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 

any non-incidental alcohol sales use. Uses requiring a Conditional Use Permit for 

sales of alcoholic beverages for on-site consumption must be 1,000 feet from any 

other use selling or serving alcohol for on-site consumption and 500 feet from any 

non-incidental alcohol sales uses, place of worship, school, park, playground, 

health care facility, residential zones, and most residences (LGMC Chapter 18.27– 

Alcoholic Beverage Sales). 

5. Adult Entertainment establishments are currently prohibited in all zones but were 

previously allowed in the General Commercial zone. The LGMC stipulates that 

Adult Entertainment establishments cannot be permitted within: 1,000 feet of 

another such business; 600 feet of any church, school, public playground, park or 

recreational area; or 500 feet of any area zoned for residential use (LGMC Chapter 

18.28 – Adult Entertainment). 

Discussion:  

Since certain land uses are subject to separation requirements, as described above, the 

applicable separation distance must be met before the land use can be established. 

Current LGMC regulations require a separation finding to be made by the decision body 

at the time of final decision on the application. This requires the applicant to prepare all 

necessary plans and studies to the satisfaction of staff before eligibility for the required 

separation finding with the final decision. 

The City Council considered the following four alternatives for the timing of making early 

separation findings for land use applications: 

1. At time of initial notice of complete or incomplete and within 30 days of initial 

application submittal. 

2. At time of being deemed complete which requires all architectural and engineering 

drawings and required reports and studies to be complete and approved by City 

staff. 

3. At time of conditional approval by the Development Services Director, Planning 

Commission or City Council. 

4. As a part of a separate Zoning Clearance, Minor Use Permit or Conditional Use 

Permit for the specific purpose of making an early separation finding. A Zoning 

Clearance would include no public noticing with appeal rights by the applicant. A 

Minor Use Permit would require a 500 foot radius public notice to property owners 

with conditional approval by the Development Services Director and appeal rights 

by the applicant and any member of the public. A Conditional Use Permit would 

require a 500 foot radius public notice to property owners, a sign posted on the 

property and conditional approval by the Planning Commission and appeal rights 

by the applicant and any member of the public.  

 



 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 4 

 
 

At the City Council meeting, further discussion took place regarding public noticing. 

Lemon Grove Measure V stipulates that a MMD shall not be established within 1,000 feet 

of protected uses, like daycares. The daycare location lists are only requested from the 

State of California once per year due to the approximate $500 cost charged by the State 

daycare licensing division. Small family daycares which are protected uses in accordance 

with LGMC Chapter 17.32 (Measure V) do not require any permit or business license from 

the City and their location will not be known unless the list is requested by the City at the 

aforementioned cost. The LGMC currently requires a 500 foot radius public notice to 

property owners, not renters or tenants, for public notifications associated with Minor 

Use Permits, Conditional Use Permits, Planned Development Permits, Tentative Maps 

and Tentative Parcel Maps. If an early finding option could be made, the Development 

Services Director could require the public radius notice distance to match the specific 

separation requirement (e.g. 1000 feet for a MMD) to give all affected properties an 

opportunity to appeal the decision or attend the public hearing. A public notice in the East 

County Californian could also be required. 

At the July 17, 2018 City Council meeting, the City Council preferred the part of 

Alternative 4 which would require an applicant to apply for a Minor Use Permit (MUP) 

for the specific purpose of making an early separation finding. The Planning Commission 

also concurred with the use of a Minor Use Permit for making early separation findings 

on September 24, 2018 and again on November 26, 2018. To ensure adequate noticing, 

staff recommends the MUP require a notice to all real property owners within 500 feet or 

the maximum distance separation requirement for a regulated use where applicable, 

whichever is greater, of all exterior boundaries of the subject property at least ten days 

prior to the decision on the separation finding. Staff also recommends that a “sign posted 

on property” requirement be codified for all discretionary permits requiring public 

hearing, including: 

 Conditional Use Permits, 

 Planned Development Permits, 

 Tentative Maps and 

 Tentative Parcel Maps. 

In addition, staff recommends codification of a requirement to publish a public notice in 

a newspaper of general circulation for Separation Findings MUP applications to 

supplement the required public radius notice. This will ensure appropriate public noticing 

is provided for early separation findings and allows members of the public to appeal to 

the Planning Commission and further to the City Council. 

At the October 16, 2018 City Council meeting, the Council expressed concern about 

potential conflicts which could arise between an application for an early separation 

finding permit and land use applications for uses which would impose required 

separations. For instance, such a scenario could occur if a developer submits an 



 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 5 

 

application requesting an early separation finding for a MMD and, prior to review by staff, 

a daycare operator applies for a new daycare facility within the separation distance 

thereby leaving the treatment of the applications in doubt. The City Council directed staff 

to add language to the ordinance clarifying how conflicting applications would be 

prioritized. 

Staff recommends adding language to the ordinance specifying that the order of actions 

dictates the decision, shown in italics as follows and in Attachment C. Should land use 

changes or land use applications which would conflict with an early separation finding 

determination be established or filed in advance of an application for an early 

separation finding, the land use would be considered as grounds for denial of the early 

separation finding permit. Land uses or land use applications initiated after the filing 

of an early separation finding application would not be grounds for denial of the permit. 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact: None. 

Public Notification: Notice published in December 6, 2018 edition of the East County 

Californian.  

 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Ordinance No. 2018-450 – ZA1-800-0002 

Attachment B – Planning Commission Resolution 18-06 

 





Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 7 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-450 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 17.28.020 (APPLICATION 

PROCEDURES) OF THE LEMON GROVE MUNICIPAL CODE TO CREATE A 

NEW PROCESS TO ALLOW FOR EARLY SEPARATION FINDINGS FOR LAND 

USES WITH SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

 WHEREAS, an applicant seeking to establish a land use subject to separation 

findings must wait until the final decision is made by the Development Services Director, 

Planning Commission, or City Council to ensure a separation finding can be made; and 

 WHEREAS, providing a new process through the use of a Minor Use Permit 

(MUP), for making an early separation finding prior to an applicant preparing costly plans 

and reports would streamline the approval process and would not restrict an applicant 

from obtaining a permit at the time of project approval; and 

WHEREAS, should conflicting land uses or land use applications occur that affect 

the granting of the early separation finding permit, the order of the application dictates 

the decision, such that whichever land use, land use application or early separation 

finding application occurs first is given the first consideration; and 

WHEREAS, noticing procedures would be enhanced to ensure the distribution of 

a public notices would match the separation distance for each application, and add a 

requirement for a sign to be posted on the subject property announcing the time and 

location of the public hearing; and  

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2018, the Planning Commission held a duly 

noticed Public Hearing to consider Zoning Amendment ZA1-800-002 and resolved to 

recommend City Council approval; and 

WHEREAS, this action is not subject to Environmental Review under the 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because it does not constitute a project as defined by 

Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2018, a public hearing was duly noticed and held 

by the Lemon Grove City Council; and 



Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 8 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following findings required to approve 

a Zoning Amendment can be made in accordance with Section 17.28.080(B) of the 

Municipal Code: 

1. That the proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan, in 

accordance with Government Code Section 65860, as amended. 

 The proposed zoning change is procedural and is consistent with the 

General Plan. 

2. That the public health, safety, and general welfare benefit from the adoption 

of the proposed amendment. 

 Adopting a new process to allow for early separation findings saves 

applicants time and money, and improving public noticing for certain 

discretionary actions enhances community outreach, which provides a 

benefit to the public health, safety and general welfare for the City’s 

residents and business owners; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, does ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2. Amendments to Chapter 17.28.020 Application Procedures of the 

Lemon Grove Municipal Code to Create a New Process to Allow for 

Early Separation Findings for Land Uses with Separation 

Requirements are hereby added to the City of Lemon Grove 

Municipal Code to read as shown in Exhibit A. 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days following its 

adoption.  Within fifteen (15) days following its adoption, the City 

Clerk shall publish the title thereof, as a summary as required by 

state law.  



Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 9 

 

 

INTRODUCED by the City Council on December 18, 2018.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 

State of California, on December 18, 2018 by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

       

      __________________________ 

      Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

_________________________ 

Jim Lough, City Attorney 

 

  





Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 10 

 
 

 EXHIBIT A 

 

TEXT OF PROPOSED REGULATIONS  

NOTE:  

• Text proposed to be added is displayed in underlined type.  

• Text proposed to be deleted is displayed in strikeout type.  

The City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code to amend Application Procedures, Section 17.28.020, 
to read as follows: 

 

17.28.020 Application Procedures. 

     A.    Purpose. This section establishes procedures for submitting and processing applications 

for proposed uses, structures, and/or improvements of real property, and related matters subject 

to this title; authorize the city to establish, modify, and collect fees, and set time limits for 

processing. 

     1.     Definitions. Italicized words and terms found in this chapter are defined in Chapter 

17.08. 

     2.     Interpretation. In interpreting and applying the provisions of this title, uses, structures, 

and/or improvements shall be held to be the minimum requirements adopted for the promotion 

of the public health, safety, and general welfare. 

     3.     Conflicts. Except as specifically provided, this title is not intended to impair or interfere 

with any previously issued permits or approvals relating to matters subject to this title. This title 

is not intended to interfere with, abrogate, or annul any easement, covenant, or other 

agreement between parties, provided that in cases in which this title imposes a greater 

restriction than is imposed or required by existing provisions of law or ordinance or by such 

easements, covenants, or agreements, the provisions of this title shall control. 

     B.     Initiation. A proposed action may be initiated by application of the property owner, 

owner’s agent, or another interested party, by the city council. 

     C.     Pre-Application Conference. Prior to submission of an application package for a 

complicated or multi-faceted project, an applicant may request an unofficial conference with city 

staff to review the proposed project. Staff will evaluate the project in light of applicable city 

regulations, indicate possible concerns, identify required information, and note probable 

environmental impacts and possible mitigation requirements. Nothing in this conference shall be 

construed as actual or implied approval of any aspect of the proposed project. 

     D.    Application Submittal. Prior to submitting application packages for permits or other 

approvals, the applicant shall obtain a zoning clearance according to Section 17.28.070. 

Thereafter, application packages shall be submitted to the development services department 

upon a prescribed form, accompanied by applicable fees according to subsection (D)(1), and 

related materials necessary to show that the proposed use, structures, and/or improvements of 

the property comply with applicable provisions of this code, state law, federal law and the 

requirements and conditions of any associated permit. Each application filed by, or on behalf of, 

one or more property owners shall be verified by at least one such owner or the owner’s 



Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 11 

 

authorized agent attesting to the truth and correctness of all facts, statements, and information 

presented. 

     1.     Fees. The city council shall establish and modify, by resolution, a schedule of fees and 

deposits for matters subject to this title. All applicable fees and deposits shall be paid in full prior 

to processing any application, appeal, or other matter for which a fee is required. 

     Applicable fees and/or deposits may be waived for charitable, youth or nonprofit organization 

activities upon approval by the city manager. 

     No fee shall be refundable except in any case where the development services director 

determines and certifies any such fee or portion thereof has been received in error, in which 

case the amount of money received in error shall be refunded to the proper party. Refunds will 

be processed in the same manner as other demands against the city. 

     2.     Concurrent Processing. Applicants with more than one application related to the same 

project may have all applications processed simultaneously. 

     E.     Time Limits. 

     1.     Staff Review. Upon initial submittal, application packages shall be distributed to 

applicable departments for review. No more than thirty days following the date of initial 

submittal, application packages shall be deemed complete or incomplete with a request for 

more information. Once the requested information is received, the thirty day staff review cycle 

restarts. No action shall be taken on applications not yet deemed complete. 

     2.     Deemed Complete Applications. Once deemed complete, applications then progress, in 

accordance with specific permit regulations in this title, to notices according to subsection F, to 

public hearing according to subsection G, then to decisions according to subsection H. 

     F.     Notices. The notice shall state the purpose of the notice, a project description, and an 

explanation of the permit process, and be given by a date certain to affected parties according 

to subsections (F)(1), (2) and (3), as appropriate. 

     1.     Public Hearings. Notices for public hearings shall also state the time, place, and 

purpose of the public hearing and shall be given by publication at least ten days prior to the 

public hearing. Notices to affected property owners shall be given at least ten days prior to the 

public hearing according to subsection (F)(2).  

     2.     Affected Property Owners. The notice shall be mailed to all real property owners within 

five hundred feet or the maximum distance separation requirement for a regulated use where 

applicable, whichever is greater, of all exterior boundaries of the subject property at least ten 

days prior to the decision. Notices shall be mailed using the names and addresses of the 

owners as shown on the latest equalized assessment roll in the office of the county assessor. 

Where the address of such owner is not shown on such assessment roll, failure to send notice 

by mail to such property owner shall not invalidate any proceedings in connection with such 

action. In the event that the number of owners to whom notice would be sent according to this 

subsection is greater than one thousand, then notices may, instead, be given by placing a 

display advertisement of at least one-eighth page in a newspaper having general circulation 

within the affected area. 

In addition, temporary on-site sign(s) along the properties’ street frontage(s) and legible from 

across the street on pedestrian pathways shall be posted on the property at least ten days prior 

to the public hearing and until certificate of occupancy is granted for the proposed land use, but 

not to exceed a period of one year. The signs shall be a minimum of six feet high, six feet wide, 



Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 12 

 
 

and not to exceed 72 square feet total for two sides or 36 square feet for one side. Such sign 

shall include the permit numbers, property location and APN number, a site plan and description 

of the project, project name, and the applicant’s name, address and telephone number to the 

satisfaction of the development services director. Signs shall be maintained in good condition at 

all times. 

     3.     California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and State Law. Notices shall be made 

according to Government Code Sections 65090 through 65091, as amended. Processing time 

frames will apply unless extended environmental review is required by state law or this code. 

     G.    Public Hearings. A public hearing is the opportunity for the advisory body, the hearing 

body, or the appellate body to obtain public testimony or comments prior to making a decision. 

The public hearing shall be conducted in accordance with this chapter and Section 2.14.090 of 

this code. Public hearings may be continued to another time without requiring further public 

notice, so long as the future time and place are announced before adjournment of the hearing. 

     1.     Scheduling. Public hearings of the city council shall be subject to the rules regarding the 

placing of matters on its agenda, respectively. Subject to state planning and environmental 

laws, public hearings shall not be held earlier than ten or later than sixty days following 

submission of an appeal application or a deemed complete application according to subsection 

(E)(2). The time limit specified in this subsection may be extended by mutual consent of the 

applicant and the development services director; however, in no case shall this time period 

exceed one hundred eighty days. 

     2.     Notice. Notices of public hearings shall be given according to subsection (F)(1). 

     3.     Outcome. At the close of the public hearing, the advisory body may recommend 

approval, conditions, limitations, or denial; while the hearing body or the appellate body may 

make a decision. The hearing body may impose such conditions or limitations as it deems 

necessary to serve the general purpose and intent of this title. The matter may also be referred 

back to the lower body for further consideration or action. The appellate body may sustain, 

modify, deny or reverse, wholly or in part, any decision by a lower body. The decision may also 

be referred back to the lower body for further consideration or action. 

     H.    Decisions and Effective Date of Decisions. Development services director decisions are 

made within thirty days of applications being deemed complete. City council and city council 

decisions are made within twenty days of the close of the public hearing. Decisions shall 

become effective ten days following the decision date, unless an appeal has been filed 

according to subsection K. 

     Unless otherwise stated in the approval or permit, or in the conditions of approval, approvals 

and permits shall run with the land and shall continue to be valid upon a change of ownership of 

the site or structure. 

     1.     Conditions of Approval. The development services director, the city council may attach 

such conditions as deemed necessary to ensure compliance with this code. 

     2.     Response to Referral. Where an application, appeal or other matter is referred to a 

lower body for further consideration, a response to that referral shall be submitted to the 

applicant and the referring body within forty days following said referral. 

     I.      Appeals. Any applicant or other interested person who is dissatisfied with the denial, 

approval, conditional approval, or other application decision made in the administration of this 



Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 13 

 

title may appeal the decision. Decisions made by the development services director are 

appealed to the city council. Decisions made by the city council are final. 

     Appeal applications, accompanied by the filing fee, shall be filed within ten days following the 

date a decision is made, on forms provided by the development services department. Appeals 

of development services director decisions shall be submitted to the city clerk. Appeals will be 

heard at a public hearing that has been noticed according to subsection F and conducted 

according to subsection G. Failure of the appellate body to make a decision according to 

subsection H shall be deemed in agreement with the previous decision. 

     All rights of appeal are exhausted when the proceedings set forth herein have been 

completed. An applicant shall not apply for the same or similar use affecting all or part of the 

property within twelve months of the effective date of the decision of denial, or as otherwise 

specified at the time of the decision of denial. 

     J.      Expirations. Applications, approvals and permits issued according to this title will expire 

in accordance with the following: 

     1.     Application Expiration. Unless there has been substantial activity toward submitting a 

deemed complete application package according to subsection D, such application package 

shall expire after a continuous twelve-month period of inactivity. Thereafter, the applicant may 

submit a new application package according to subsection D. 

     2.     Approval and Permit Expiration. 

     a.     Any temporary use permit expires at the conclusion of the permitted use. 

     b.     Other approvals or permits subject to this title shall expire: 

     i.      Twelve months from the effective date of the decision, unless construction and/or use in 

reliance has commenced or as otherwise stated in the conditions of approval; or 

     ii.     If the use for which it was issued is discontinued for a continuous period of twelve 

months. 

     K.    Time Extensions. At any time prior to the expiration of approvals or permits subject to 

this title, the permittee for such approval or permit may file a written request for an extension of 

time. The development services director may grant an initial extension of the term of the permit. 

The city council shall consider all subsequent requests for time extensions, according to 

subsection (F)(2), and if: 

     1.     The form and intensity of the project for which the approval or permit was issued have 

not been significantly altered, and 

     2.     The conditions or circumstances which supported the findings of fact required for the 

original approval or permit have not changed and appear unlikely to change within the period of 

the proposed extension of time. 

     L.     Substantial Conformance Review. Any project submittal made subsequent to obtaining 

a use permit authorized by this title shall be in substantial conformance with that use permit. At 

the request of the owner, or in the event that submittals or field conditions are found to not be in 

conformance, a substantial conformance review application, accompanied by the filing fee, shall 

be filed and processed according to subsection D. If the project is found to not be in substantial 

conformance, the applicant may request a modification of the use permit according to 

subsection M. 



Attachment A 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 14 

 
 

     M.    Permit Modifications. Permit modification applications, accompanied by the filing fee, 

may be filed at any time prior to the initial expiration date of the project’s use permit. 

Applications shall be processed according to subsection D. 

     N.    Revocation of Approvals and Permits. Any structures and/or improvements constructed, 

erected, altered, moved, or maintained contrary to a use permit and/or other provisions of this 

title, and any use of any land or structure established, conducted, or maintained contrary to an 

approval, permit and/or other provisions of this title, shall be declared to be unlawful and a 

public nuisance. 

     1.     Procedure. The development services director shall immediately commence action or 

proceedings for the abatement of a violation of this title, according to Chapter 1.24. If the owner, 

operator or other responsible entity fails or refuses to abate any public nuisance according to 

subsection N, the development services director may schedule a public hearing, according to 

subsection G, to consider the following actions: 

     a.     Requiring whatever assurance deemed appropriate to guarantee that such violation will 

be corrected in a timely manner and will not occur again; 

     b.     Imposing additional conditions or limitations affecting the physical design of the property 

or its use; 

     c.     Revoking any approvals or permits subject to this title, according to the appeals 

provisions of subsection K. 

     In the event the development services director refers an enforcement matter to the city 

council, the city attorney shall, upon order of the city council, immediately apply to such courts 

as may have jurisdiction to grant such relief as will abate and remove such building or structure 

and restrain and enjoin any person from erecting, maintaining, or using any property contrary to 

the provisions of this title. 

     O.    Early Separation Findings. Separation findings required as a part of any permit 

described in this Chapter may be made early, prior to application materials being submitted and 

prior to a decision by the Development Services Director, Planning Commission and/or City 

Council with a Minor Use Permit application for the sole purpose of finding that the application 

meets or does not meet the required separation requirements. Land uses or land use 

applications initiated after the filing of an early separation finding application would not be 

grounds for denial of the permit. Should land use changes or land use applications which would 

conflict with an early separation finding determination be established or filed in advance of an 

application for an early separation finding, the land use would be considered as grounds for 

denial of the early separation finding permit.  

No other approval may be granted as a part of this permit. Applications made pursuant to this 

subsection must give additional notice by way of advertisement in a newspaper having general 

circulation within the affected area at least ten days prior to the decision. This finding that the 

application meets separation requirements shall be valid for up to one year before the early 

finding expires.  

     OP.    The remedies provided for in this title shall be cumulative and not exclusive. Nothing 

herein is intended to conflict with applicable state laws or federal laws. (Ord. 434 § 5, 2015; Ord. 

386 § 3, 2009)





Attachment B 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 15 

 

 

 

  



Attachment B 

 

 Ordinance No. 2018-450, ZA1-800-0002 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 16 

 
 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. 4 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: Public Works 

Staff Contact: Mike James, Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director 

 mjames@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title:  License Agreement for Wireless Installation on Public 

Structures 

 

Recommended Action:  Adopt a resolution (Attachment A) authorizing a license 

agreement for wireless installation on public structures with New Cingular Wireless PCS, 

LLC.   

Summary:  New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (formerly known as AT&T Wireless) has 

requested to construct small antenna facilities on existing streetlight poles within the 

City’s right-of-way.  In exchange for use of the City’s right-of-way, the proposed 

agreement (Attachment A – Exhibit A) would allow New Cingular Wireless to install 

antennas on existing street light poles after obtaining a permit through the Development 

Services Department.   

Discussion:  The California Public Utilities Code §7901 allows telephone corporations 

to construct telephone lines within public roads and to erect poles to support telephone 

lines and other communication equipment.  The City owns and operates 416 streetlight 

poles in the public right-of-way. New Cingular Wireless has requested to construct small 

antenna facilities on existing streetlight poles within the City's right-of-way.  These small 

antenna facilities will eventually support the 5th generation wireless system (the 5G 

network).  The antennas are affixed to streetlight poles and will provide greater access to 

wireless broadband services.   

New Cingular Wireless requests that the City consider a ten-year License Agreement, 

which would regulate the installation of the small antenna facilities and enhance the 

communication network in the City.  The proposed License Agreement would allow New 

Cingular Wireless to install antennas on existing street light poles after obtaining a permit 

through the Development Services Department. 

In exchange for use of the City's right-of-way, the proposed Agreement requires New 

Cingular Wireless to: 

mailto:mjames@lemongrove.ca.gov


License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 

1) Pay the City $1,250 per year for each site for the first year-the rental rate increases 

by 2.5 percent each year;  

2) Pay a permit application fee of $1,500 per application (several sites can be included 

per application);  

3) Install conduit in the right-of-way for City use when New Cingular Wireless 

trenches; and  

4) Meet design standards detailed in the proposed License Agreement. 

The proposed Agreement excludes use of the City's decorative streetlight poles located in 

the downtown area for an antenna facility.   

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact:  

New Cingular Wireless may install up to ten sites under one permit application, which 

will generate up to $12,500 in rental revenues and $1,500 in permit fees.   

 

Public Notification:  None 

 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Resolution 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 

Attachment A 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-_______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR NEW 

CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, LLC DBA AT&T MOBILITY FOR WIRELESS 

INSTALLATION ON PUBLIC STRUCTURES 

WHEREAS, the California Public Utilities Code § 7901 allows telephone 

corporations to construct telephone lines within public roads, and erect poles to support 

telephone lines and other communication equipment; and 

WHEREAS, the City owns and operates 416 streetlight poles in the public right 

of-way; and 

WHEREAS, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, doing business as AT&T Wireless 

("New Cingular") has requested approval to construct small antenna facilities on certain 

existing streetlight poles within the City's right-of-way; and 

WHEREAS, these small antenna facilities will eventually support the 5th 

generation wireless system (the 5G network), provide greater access to wireless 

broadband services, and enhance the communication network in the City; and 

WHEREAS, New Cingular has requested that the City consider a ten-year License 

Agreement (the "Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, in exchange for use of the City's right-of-way, the proposed 

Agreement requires New Cingular to (1) pay the City $1,250 per year for each site for the 

first year, with a rental rate increase of 2.5 percent each year; (2) pay a permit application 

fee of $1,500 per application (up to ten sites can be included in each application); (3) 

install conduit in the right-of-way for City use when New Cingular Wireless trenches; and 

(4) meet design standards detailed in the proposed Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Agreement excludes use of the City's decorative 

streetlight poles located in the downtown area for an antenna facility; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes it to be in the City's best interests to enter 

into a license agreement with New Cingular for installation of small antenna facilities on 

existing streetlight poles at various locations within the City of Lemon Grove. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, hereby finds: 

1. The execution of a proposed License Agreement for Wireless Installations on 
Public Structures, substantially in the form as presented to the City Council in 
this meeting, with such changes as may be approved by the City Manager or her 
designee; and  



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 4 

 

2. The City Manager, or her designee, and the City Clerk are hereby authorized 
and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City of Lemon Grove; 
and 

3. The City Manager, or her designee, is hereby further authorized to execute, and 

the City Clerk is hereby authorized to attest the City Manager's or designee's 

signature, such amendments to the Agreement as may be necessary to approve 

any renewal terms of the Agreement as contemplated therein, and to make such 

other changes as may be necessary, in the determination of the City Manager 

or her designee, to implement the Agreement in the best interests of the City. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on ______, 2018, the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. _______, passed by the following 

vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

       

      __________________________ 

      Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

_________________________ 
James Lough, City Attorney 

 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 6 

 

Exhibit ‘A’



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 7 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 8 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 9 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 10 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 11 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 12 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 13 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 14 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 15 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 16 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 17 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 18 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 19 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 20 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 21 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 22 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 23 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 24 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 25 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 26 

 



License Agreement for Wireless 

Installation on Public Structures 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 27 

 

 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 1 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 
Item No. _5__ 

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Department: City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact: Shelley Chapel, City Clerk 

 Schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title: Ordinance No. 449 Adding Chapter 8.70 to the Lemon Grove 

Municipal Code Establishing the Tobacco Retailer License 

 

Recommended Action:  Conduct second reading, by title only, and adopt Ordinance 

No. 449 (Attachment A) adding Chapter 8.70 to the Lemon Grove Municipal Code. 

 

Summary: 

On November 20, 2018, the City Council introduced Ordinance No. 449 (Attachment A), 

an ordinance adding Chapter 8.70 to the Lemon Grove Municipal Code.  This Ordinance 

creates the Tobacco Retailer License (TRL) program. 

 

Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact:  

The TRL program will include a fee structure that will offset the cost of license 
administration by the City and annual compliance checks by the San Diego County 
Sheriff’s Department. The City was recently awarded $46,071.00 in grant funding from 
the California Department of Justice (DOJ) towards program administration and 
enforcement costs for 2018 – 2020.   

 

Public Notification: None. 

 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Ordinance No. 449 

 

mailto:Schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov




 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 2 

 

Attachment A 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 449 

A ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER  8.70  (TOBACCO RETAIL LICENSE) TO 

THE LEMON GROVE MUNICIPAL CODE ESTABLISHING A TOBACCO RETAIL 

LICENSE AND PROHIBITING THE SALE OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS TO 

PERSONS UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE 

 

WHEREAS, California Penal Code Section 308 prohibits the sale or furnishing of 

cigarettes, tobacco products and smoking paraphernalia to minors, as well as the 

purchase, receipt, or possession of tobacco products by minors; and 

WHEREAS, California Business & Professions Code Section 22956 requires that 

tobacco retailers check the identification of tobacco purchasers who reasonably appear to 

be under 21 years of age; and 

WHEREAS, California Business & Professions Code Section 22952 and 

California Penal Code Section 308 require that tobacco retailers post a conspicuous notice 

at each point of sale stating that selling tobacco products to minors is illegal; and 

WHEREAS, California Business & Profession Code Section 22962 prohibits the 

sale or display of cigarettes though a self-service display and prohibits public access to 

cigarettes without the assistance of a clerk; and 

WHEREAS, California Penal Code Section 308.1 prohibits the sale of "bidis" 

(hand-rolled filterless cigarettes) except at those businesses that prohibit the presence of 

minors; and 

WHEREAS, California Penal Code Section 308.3 prohibits the manufacture, 

distribution, or sale of cigarettes in packages of less than 20 and prohibits the 

manufacture, distribution, or sale of" roll- your-own" tobacco in packages containing less 

than 0.60 ounces of tobacco; and 

WHEREAS, California Business & Professions Code Section 22971.3 authorizes 

local authorities to adopt tobacco retailer licensing laws to provide for the suspension and 

revocation of the local tobacco retailer license for any violation of a state tobacco control 

law; and 

WHEREAS, a 2015 Center for Disease Control and Prevention report states that 

middle and high school students’ use of electronic cigarettes tripled from 2013 to 2014; 

and 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 3 

 

           WHEREAS, the same report states that 9 out of 10 cigarette smokers had their 

first cigarette before the age of 18; and 

WHEREAS, according to 2017 data from Youth Tobacco Purchase Surveys 

conducted by Community Action Service & Advocacy (CASA), 31 percent of  Lemon 

Grove’s tobacco retailers sold tobacco products illegally to youth surveyors under 21 years 

of age; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove has a substantial interest in promoting 

compliance with federal, state and local laws intended to regulate tobacco sales to youth 

and use by youth; and 

WHEREAS, studies have shown that local tobacco retail licensing programs 

coupled with a strong enforcement program substantially reduces youth access to 

tobacco; and 

WHEREAS, state law prohibits sales of “drug paraphernalia” however many 

retailers sell items that are commonly known to be “drug paraphernalia” including water 

pipes and personal vaporizers used to smoke illicit drugs, claiming the items are for 

tobacco or e-liquid use; and 

WHEREAS, Lemon Grove intends to require compliance with state drug 

paraphernalia laws as a condition of obtaining and maintaining the local tobacco retail 

license; and 

WHEREAS, in 2016, the Governor approved Senate Bill 7 to change the age for 

which individuals can purchase tobacco products to 21 years old; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to add Chapter 8.70 to the Lemon Grove Municipal 

Code to create a Tobacco Retail License. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the addition of Chapter 8.70 (Tobacco Retail License) 

establishing tobacco retailer license regulations, is hereby added to the City of Lemon 

Grove Municipal Code to read as shown in the attached Exhibit A.  

INTRODUCED by the City Council on November 20, 2018. 

2nd Reading by the City Council on December 18, 2018.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, hereby approves  

  



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 4 

 

          Attachment A 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on ______, 2018, the City Council of the City of 

Lemon Grove, California, adopted Ordinance No. 449, passed by the following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

       

      __________________________ 

      Racquel Vasquez, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

_________________________ 

James Lough, City Attorney 

  

  



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 5 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

CHAPTER 8.70 TOBACCO RETAIL LICENSE 

SECTIONS: 

8.70.010  Purpose 

8.70.020  Definitions 

8.70.030  Requirement for Tobacco Retail License 

8.70.040  Applications Procedure 

8.70.050  Issuance and Renewal of License 

8.70.060  Display of License 

8.70.070  License Fee 

8.70.080  Licenses Nontransferable 

8.70.090  License Violation - Compliance Monitoring 

8.70.100  Suspension or Revocation of License 

8.70.110  Denial, Suspension and Revocation - Appeals 

8.70.120  Hearings - Generally 

8.70.130  Conduct of Hearing 

8.70.140 Form and Contents of Decision of Hearing Officer - Appeal to City 

Manager – Finality of Decision 

8.70.150  Enforcement 

8.70.160  Severability 

8.70.010     Purpose 

The purpose of this Chapter is to encourage responsible tobacco retailing and discourage 

violations of tobacco related laws that prohibit the sale or distribution of tobacco 

products, including all smoking materials as defined in section 8.65.020, to minors.   This 

Chapter is not intended to expand or reduce the degree to which the acts regulated by 

federal or state law are criminally proscribed or to alter the penalty provided therefore. 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 6 

 

8.70.020     Definitions 

When used in this chapter, the following definitions shall have the meanings given by this 

section, whether or not these words or phrases are capitalized: 

“Drug Paraphernalia” shall have the meaning set forth in Health & Safety Code section 

11014.5, as that section may be amended from time to time. 

“Electronic Smoking Device” means an electronic and/or battery-operated device, the use 

of which may resemble smoking, which can be used to deliver an inhaled dose of nicotine 

or other substances by delivering a vaporized or heated solution. Electronic Smoking 

Device includes any such device, whether manufactured, distributed marketed or sold as 

an electronic cigarette, an e-cigarette, an electronic cigar, electronic cigarillo, an 

electronic pipe, an electronic hookah, vaporizer, vape pen, heated tobacco product, or any 

product name or descriptor, including any component, part or accessory of such a device, 

whether or not sold separately.  Electronic Smoking Device does not include any product 

that has been approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for sale as a 

tobacco cessation product or for other therapeutic purposes where that product is 

marketed and sold solely for such approved use. 

“Electronic Smoking Device Paraphernalia” means cartridges, cartomizers, e-liquid, 

smoke juices, tips, atomizers, Electronic Smoking Device batteries, Electronic Smoking 

Device chargers and any other item specifically designed for the preparations, charging 

or use of Electronic Smoking Devices. 

“Hearing Officer" means the impartial hearing officer designated to serve in this capacity.  

“Itinerant Tobacco Retailing" means engaging in tobacco retailing at other than a fixed 

location.  

“License” means a Tobacco Retail License issued by the City pursuant to this Chapter. 

“Licensee” means a Person to whom a License has been issued. 

“Person" means any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, limited liability 

company, association, social club, fraternal organization, corporation, estate, trust, 

business trust, receiver, trustee, syndicate, or any other group or combination acting as a 

unit. 

“Proprietor" means a person with an ownership or managerial interest in a business. An 

ownership interest shall be deemed to exist when a person has a ten percent or greater 

interest in the stock, assets or income of a business other than the sole interest of security 

for debt. A managerial interest shall be deemed to exist when a person has, or can have, 

sole or shared control over the day- to-day operations of a business. 

“Smoking Materials” means Tobacco Products, Electronic Smoking Device, Electronic 

Smoking Device Paraphernalia, and any other product containing tobacco or nicotine that 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 7 

 

releases gases, particles or vapors into the air as a result of combustion, heating, electrical 

ignition or vaporization, when the apparent or usual purpose is human inhalation of the 

byproducts. 

“Tobacco Product" means: (1) any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco or 

nicotine that is intended for human consumption, whether smoked, heated, chewed, 

absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, snorted, sniffed, or ingested by any other means, including, 

but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, little cigars, chewing tobacco, pipe tobacco, snuff; and 

(2) any Electronic Smoking Device. (3) Notwithstanding any provision of subsections (1) 

and (2) to the contrary, “Tobacco Product” includes any component, part, or accessory of 

a tobacco product, whether or not sold separately. “Tobacco Product” does not include 

any product that has been approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration 

for sale as a tobacco cessation product or for other therapeutic purposes where such 

product is marketed and sold solely for such an approved purpose. 

“Tobacco Paraphernalia" includes cigarette papers or wrappers, blunt wraps, pipes, 

holders of Smoking Materials of all types, cigarette rolling machines, and any other item 

or instrument designed for the smoking, consumption, use or ingestion of Tobacco 

Products. 

“Tobacco Retailer" means any Person who sells, offers for sale, exchanges, or offers to 

exchange for any form of consideration, tobacco, Tobacco Products, or Tobacco 

Paraphernalia without regard to the quantity sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered 

for exchange. 

“Tobacco Retailing" shall mean selling, offering for sale, exchanging, or offering to 

exchange for any form of consideration, tobacco, Tobacco Products, or Tobacco 

Paraphernalia without regard to the quantity sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered 

for exchange. 

8.70.030     Requirement for Tobacco Retail License 

A.     It shall be unlawful for any Person to act as a Tobacco Retailer in the City without 

first obtaining and maintaining a valid Tobacco Retail License pursuant to this Municipal 

Code Chapter for each location at which Tobacco Retailing is to occur.  No Tobacco Retail 

License will be issued to an authorized Tobacco Retailing at any location other than a 

fixed location. No License will be issued for Itinerant Tobacco Retailing or Tobacco 

Retailing from vehicles. 

B.     Nothing in this Chapter shall be construed to grant any Person obtaining a Tobacco 

Retail License any status or right other than the right to act as a Tobacco Retailer at the 

location in the City identified on the face of the License, subject to compliance with all 

other applicable laws, regulations, and ordinances. Nothing in this Chapter shall be 

construed to render inapplicable, supersede, or apply in lieu of any other provision of 

applicable law, including, without limitation, any condition or limitation on indoor 

smoking made applicable to business establishments by Labor Code Section 6404.5. 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 8 

 

C.     No Person who is younger than the minimum age established by California law for 

the purchase or possession of Tobacco Products shall engage in Tobacco Retailing without 

the supervision of a person over the age of 21. 

8.70.040     Applications Procedure 

A.     An application for a Tobacco Retail License shall be submitted to the City in the name 

of each Proprietor proposing to conduct a Tobacco Retailing business and shall be signed 

by each Proprietor or an authorized agent thereof. A Proprietor proposing to conduct 

Tobacco Retailing at more than one location shall submit a separate application for each 

location. 

B.     All applications shall be submitted on a form supplied by the City and shall contain 

the following information: 

1.     The name, address, and telephone number of each Proprietor. 

2.     The business name, address and telephone number of the fixed location for 

which a Tobacco Retail License is sought. 

3.     The name and mailing address authorized by each applicant to receive all 

License-related communications and notices (the "authorized address"). Failure to supply 

an authorized address shall be understood to consent to the provision of notice at the 

business address specified in paragraph 2, above. 

4.     Whether or not any applicant has previously been issued a License pursuant 

to this Chapter, or other permit, license or entitlement issued by the City to operate the 

business, that is or was at any time suspended or revoked, or whether the applicant has 

previously had a tobacco retail license issued by another jurisdiction denied, suspended 

or revoked, and, if so, the dates of such denial, suspension or revocation.  

5.   Such other information as the City Manager deems necessary for the 

administration or enforcement of this Chapter. 

6.     Any and all additional information required by the City to be included in a 

Tobacco Retail License application. 

8.70.050     Issuance and Renewal of License 

A.   Upon the receipt of an application for a Tobacco Retail License and the 

payment of a Tobacco Retail License fee, the City shall issue a License unless: 

1.     The application is incomplete or inaccurate. 

2.     The application seeks authorization for Tobacco Retailing at an address that 

appears on a License that is suspended, has been revoked, or is subject to suspension or 

revocation proceedings for violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter.  



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 9 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this subparagraph shall not constitute a basis for denial 

of a License if either or both of the following apply: 

a)     The applicant provides the City with documentation demonstrating that the 

applicant has acquired or is acquiring the premises or business in an arm's length 

transaction. For the purposes of this subparagraph, an "arm's length transaction" is 

defined as sale in good faith and for valuable consideration that reflects the fair market 

value in the open market between two informed and willing parties, neither under any 

compulsion to participate in the transaction. A sale between relatives, related companies 

or partners, or a sale for the primary purpose of avoiding the effect of the violations of this 

chapter that occurred at the location, is presumed not to be an "arm's length transaction." 

b)    It has been more than three years since the most recent License for that 

location was revoked. 

3.     The application seeks authorization for Tobacco Retailing by a Proprietor for 

which or whom a suspension is in effect or by a Proprietor which or who has had a License 

revoked, pursuant to this chapter. 

4.     The application seeks an authorization for Tobacco Retailing that is unlawful 

pursuant to this Chapter, or that is unlawful pursuant to any other local, state or federal 

law. 

5.     The City has information that the applicant or his or her agents or employees 

have violated any local, state, or federal tobacco control law at the location for which the 

License or renewal of the License is sought within the preceding 30-day period. 

6.     The City has information that the applicant or his or her agent or employee 

has violated any local, state or federal tobacco control law, including this Chapter, within 

the preceding (12) months. 

7.     The issuance of a Tobacco Retail License would be in conflict with any other 

City ordinance. 

B.     Beginning from the effective date of this Chapter, all Tobacco Retailers have 

until December 31, 2019 to obtain a License. An application to renew such License shall 

be made no later than 30 days prior, but no earlier than 60 days prior to the expiration of 

the License. The City has no obligation to issue notification of impending expiration of 

any License. The applicant shall follow all of the procedures and provide all of the 

information required by Section 8.65.040 above. The City shall process the application 

according to the provisions of this section. A License may be renewed annually by 

submitting a Tobacco Retail License application to the City along with payment of the 

annual Tobacco Retail Licensing fee; provided, however, a Tobacco Retail License that is 

suspended, has been revoked, or is subject to suspension or revocation proceedings shall 

not be renewed pending the final outcome of such suspension or revocation. 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 10 

 

C.   If the information required in the License application pursuant to any 

subsection of Chapter 8.65 changes, a new Tobacco Retail License is required before the 

business may continue to act as a Tobacco Retailer.  For example, if a Proprietor to whom 

a License has been issued changes business location, that Proprietor must apply for a new 

License prior to acting as a Tobacco Retailer at the new location. If the business is sold, 

the new owner must apply for a License for that location before acting as a Tobacco 

Retailer. 

D.    A Tobacco Retail License that is not timely renewed pursuant to this Chapter 

shall be automatically suspended by operation of law. If not renewed, a license shall be 

automatically revoked six (6) months after the renewal date.  Additionally, civil, criminal 

and/or administrative citations may be issued during this interim period for failure to 

maintain the appropriate License. To reinstate the paid status of a License that has been 

suspended due to the failure to timely renew the License or pay the renewal fee, the 

Tobacco Retailer must: 

1.     Submit the License renewal application and fee plus a reinstatement fee of ten 

percent of the License renewal fee; and 

2.     Submit a signed affidavit affirming that he or she has not sold any Tobacco 

Product or Tobacco Paraphernalia during the period the License was suspended for 

failure to pay the License renewal fee. 

8.70.060     Display of License 

Each License shall be prominently displayed in a publicly visible location at the Licensed 

premises. Failure to properly display the License will result in the issuance of a citation. 

8.70.070     License Fees 

The fee for issuance or renewal of a Tobacco Retail License shall be established by 

resolution of the City Council and shall be in addition to the City' s business license fee 

and any other license or permit fee imposed by this Code upon the applicant. The Tobacco 

Retail License fee shall be paid to the City at the time the License application is submitted. 

The fee shall be calculated so as to recover the cost of administration and enforcement of 

this Chapter, including, for example, issuing a License, administering the License 

program, Tobacco Retailer education, Tobacco Retailer inspection and compliance 

checks, documentation of violations, and prosecution of violators, but shall not exceed 

the cost of the regulatory program authorized by this Chapter. All fees and interest upon 

proceeds of fees shall be used exclusively to fund the program. Fees are nonrefundable 

except as may be required by law. 

8.70.080     Licenses Nontransferable & Convey a Limited, Conditional Privilege 

A Tobacco Retail License is nontransferable and subject to the provisions of this 

Municipal Code Section. Nothing in this Chapter shall be construed to grant any Person 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 11 

 

obtaining and maintaining a Tobacco Retailer License any status or right other than the 

limited conditional privilege to act as a Tobacco Retailer at the location within the City’s 

jurisdictional boundaries identified on the face of the License, subject to compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Chapter. 

8.70.090     License Violations – Compliance Monitoring 

A.     It shall be a violation of a Tobacco Retail License for a Tobacco Retail 

Licensee or his or her agents or employees to violate any local, state or federal tobacco-

related law. 

B.     It shall be a violation of this Chapter for any Tobacco Retail Licensee or any 

of the Licensee’s agents or employees to violate any local, state, or federal law regulating 

controlled substances or Drug Paraphernalia including, but not limited to, California 

Health and Safety Code section 11364.7, as that section may be amended from time to 

time. 

C.     In addition to the provisions of this Municipal Code, compliance with this 

Chapter shall be monitored by the San Diego County Sheriff's Department. Any peace 

officer or Municipal Code compliance official also may enforce this Chapter. The San 

Diego County Sheriff's Department shall check compliance of each Tobacco Retailer at 

least one time per twelve (12) month period and shall conduct additional compliance 

checks as warranted. The compliance checks shall be conducted to determine, at a 

minimum, if the Tobacco Retailer is complying with tobacco laws regulating underage 

sales. The San Diego County Sheriff's Department shall use youth decoys and comply with 

protocols for the compliance checks developed in consultation with the San Diego County 

Department of Health and Human Services and the San Diego District Attorney. When 

appropriate, the compliance checks shall determine compliance with other tobacco-

related laws. 

D.    The City shall not enforce any tobacco related minimum age law against a 

Person who otherwise might be in violation of such law because of a Person's age 

(hereinafter “youth decoy") if the potential violation occurs when: 

1.     The youth decoy is participating in a compliance check supervised by a peace 

officer; or 

2.     The youth decoy is participating in a compliance check funded in part by the 

San Diego County Department of Health and Human Services or funded in part, either 

directly or indirectly through sub-contracting, by the California Department of Health 

Services; or 

3.     The youth decoy has a letter of permission for such compliance check activity 

from the District Attorney’s Office. 

 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 12 

 

8.70.100     Suspension or Revocation of License 

A.     In addition to any other penalty authorized by law, and including the 

provisions of this Municipal Code, a Tobacco Retail License may be suspended or revoked 

if the City finds, after notice to the Tobacco Retail Licensee and opportunity to be heard, 

that the Tobacco Retail Licensee or his or her agents or employees has or have violated 

any of the provisions of this Chapter; provided, however, violations by a Licensee at one 

location may not be accumulated against other locations of that same Tobacco Retail 

Licensee, nor may violations accumulated against a prior Tobacco Retail Licensee at a 

Licensed location be accumulated against a new Tobacco Retail Licensee at the same 

Licensed location. 

1.      Upon a finding by the City of a first License violation within any three-year 

period, the City shall: 

a)      Issue a written warning to the Licensee, including providing an educational 

notice about the nature of the violation; and 

b)      Assess a fine against the Licensee for violation of this Chapter 

2.      Upon a finding by the City of a second License violation within any three-

year period, the City shall: 

a) Require the Licensee to provide documentation to the City that all 

employees engaged in the Retail Sale of tobacco have received training in a City approved 

program within sixty (60) days after the warning, or such other time as shall be set by the 

City; and 

b)      Assess an additional fine against the Licensee for violation of this Chapter 

3.      Upon the finding by the City of a third License violation within any three-

year period, the City may suspend or revoke the License. 

B.     A Tobacco Retail License shall be revoked if the City finds, after notice and 

opportunity to be heard, that any one of the conditions listed below exist. The revocation 

shall be without prejudice to the filing of a new application for a Tobacco Retail License. 

1.     One or more of the bases for denial of a Tobacco Retail License under Section 

8.65.050 existed at the time the Tobacco Retail License application was made or at any 

time before the Tobacco Retail License was issued. 

2.     The application is incomplete for failure to provide the information required 

by Section 8.65.040. 

3.     Any information contained in the application, including supplemental 

information, if any, is found to be false in any material respect. 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 13 

 

4.     The application seeks authorization for Tobacco Retailing that is unlawful 

pursuant to this Code, or that is unlawful pursuant to any other local, state or federal law. 

C.     In the event the City suspends or revokes a Tobacco Retail License, written 

notice of the suspension or revocation shall be served upon the Tobacco Retail Licensee 

within five (5) days of the suspension or revocation in a manner prescribed in Section 

8.65.040. The notice shall contain: 

1.     A brief statement of the specific grounds for such suspension or revocation; 

2.     A statement that the Tobacco Retail Licensee may appeal the suspension or 

revocation by submitting an appeal, in writing, in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 8.65.110, to the City, within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the service of the 

notice; and 

3.     A statement that the failure to appeal the notice of suspension or revocation 

will constitute a waiver of all rights to an administrative appeal hearing, and the 

suspension or revocation will be final. 

8.70.110     Denial, Suspension and Revocation - Appeals 

A.     Any Tobacco Retail License applicant or Licensee aggrieved by the decision of 

the City in denying, suspending, or revoking a Tobacco Retail License, may appeal the 

decision, by submitting a written appeal to the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days 

from the date of service of the notice of denial, suspension, or revocation. The written 

appeal shall contain: 

1.     A brief statement of the specific action protested, together with any material 

facts claimed to support the contentions of the appellant; 

2.     A brief statement of the relief sought, and the reasons why it is claimed the 

protested action should be reversed or otherwise set aside; 

3.     The signatures of all parties named as appellants and their official mailing 

addresses; and 

4.     The verification (by declaration under penalty of perjury) of at least one 

appellant as to the truth of the matters stated in the appeal. 

B.     The appeal hearing shall be conducted by a Hearing Officer. 

C.     Upon receipt of any appeal filed pursuant to this section, the City Clerk shall 

transmit said appeal to the Hearing Officer who shall calendar it for a hearing. The 

Hearing Officer shall give the parties at least fifteen (15) calendar days written notice of 

the time and place of the hearing either by causing a copy of such notice to be delivered 

to the appellant personally or by mailing a copy thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to 

the appellant at the address shown on the appeal. Upon good cause, the Hearing Officer 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 14 

 

may grant one extension for the date of the hearing not to exceed fifteen (15) days from 

the original date set for the hearing. 

D.    Only those matters or issues specifically raised by the appellant in the notice 

of appeal shall be considered in the hearing of the appeal. 

E.     Failure of any Person to file a timely appeal in accordance with the provisions 

of this section shall constitute an irrevocable waiver of the right to an administrative 

hearing and a final adjudication of the notice and order, or any portion thereof. 

F.     Following the hearing on the appeal by the Hearing Officer, the decision of the 

Hearing Officer may be appealed to the City Manager or his or her designee. A decision 

of the City Manager or his or her designee shall be the final decision of the City. 

G.    During a period of License suspension, the Tobacco Retail Licensee must 

remove from public view all Tobacco Products and Tobacco Paraphernalia at the address 

that appears on the suspended or revoked Tobacco Retail License. 

8.70.120     Hearings – Generally 

A.     At the time set for hearing, the Hearing Officer shall proceed to hear the 

testimony of material witnesses, the appellant, and other competent Persons, including 

members of the public, respecting those matters or issues specifically listed by the 

appellant in the notice of appeal. 

B.     The proceedings at the hearing shall be electronically recorded. Either party 

may provide a certified shorthand reporter to maintain a record of the proceedings at the 

party's own expense. 

C.     The Hearing Officer may, upon the request of the appellant or upon the request 

of the City, grant continuances from time to time for good cause shown, or upon his or 

her own motion. 

8.70.130     Conduct of Hearing 

A.     Hearings need not be conducted in accordance to the technical rules relating 

to evidence and witnesses. Government Code section 11513, subsections (a), (b) and (c), 

or as such section may be amended from time to time, shall apply to hearings under this 

Chapter. 

B.     Oral evidence shall be taken only upon oath or affirmation. 

C.     Irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded.  

D.    Each party shall have these rights, among others: 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 15 

 

1.     To call and examine witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues of the 

hearing. 

2.     To introduce documentary and physical evidence. 

3.     To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues of 

the hearing. 

4.     To impeach any witness regardless of which party first called the witness to 

testify. 

5.     To rebut evidence presented against the party. 

6.     To represent himself, herself, or itself, or to be represented by anyone of his, 

her, or its choice who is lawfully permitted do so. 

E.     In reaching a decision, official notice may be taken, either before or after 

submission of the case for decision, of any fact that may be judicially noticed by the courts 

of this state or that may appear in any of the official records of the City of any of its 

departments. 

8.70.140     Form and Contents of Decision of Hearing Officer - Appeal to City Manager - 

Finality of Decision 

A.     If it is shown, by a preponderance of the evidence, that one or more bases exist 

to deny, suspend, or revoke the Tobacco Retail License, the Hearing Officer shall affirm 

the City's decision to deny, suspend, or revoke the Tobacco Retail License. The decision 

of the Hearing Officer shall be in writing and shall contain findings of fact and a 

determination of the issues presented. 

B.     The decision of the Hearing Officer shall inform the appellant that the decision 

may be appealed to the City Manager by filing a written appeal with the Hearing Officer 

within ten (10) days of receipt of the decision of the Hearing Officer. The written appeal 

shall be forwarded to the City Manager upon receipt. 

C.     Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the written appeal, the City Manager shall 

review the record of the hearing and issue a written decision to grant or deny the appeal. 

A decision of the City Manager shall be final. The City Manager shall provide appellant 

with a copy of his or her decision and that the time for judicial review is governed by 

California Code of Civil Procedure section 1094.6, or as such section may be amended 

from time to time. Copies of the decision shall be delivered to the parties personally or 

sent by certified mail to the address shown on the appeal. The decision shall be final when 

signed by City Manager and served as provided in this section. 

 

 



 Proposed Tobacco Retailer License Ord 

 December 18, 2018 

P a g e  | 16 

 

8.70.150     Enforcement 

A.     In addition to any other remedy, any Person violating any provision of this 

Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor for each day a violation continues. 

B.     Any violation of this Chapter may be remedied by a civil action brought by the 

City Attorney. The City may recover attorneys’ fees and costs of suit, including witness 

fees, in any civil action brought by the City Attorney to remedy any violation of this 

Chapter. 

C.     Violations of this Chapter are hereby declared to be public nuisances subject 

to abatement by the City. 

D.    In addition to criminal sanctions and other remedies set forth in this Chapter, 

civil and administrative penalties may be imposed pursuant to Chapter 1.24 of this 

Municipal Code against any Person violating any provision of this Chapter. Imposition, 

enforcement, collection and administrative review of administrative penalties imposed 

shall be conducted pursuant to Chapter 1.24 of this Municipal Code. 

8.70.160     Severability 

If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase in this 

chapter or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid or 

ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, that decision shall not affect the validity 

or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this chapter or any part thereof. The City 

Council hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 

paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared 

unconstitutional, or invalid, or ineffective. 

 

 


	Agenda Summary REGULAR Meeting
	Item 1.A - Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinance on the Agenda
	Item 1.B - City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
	Item 1.B - City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
	Demands Dec 18 2018
	Blank Page

	Item 1.C - Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes
	Blank Page

	Item 1.D - Mayor Pro Tem Rotation
	Item 1.D - Mayor Pro Tem Rotation
	02649 Mayor Pro Tem Rotation
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Item 1.E - Maddy Act - Local Appointments
	Item 1.F City Council Appointments
	Item 1.G - Final Map 6800 Mallard Court
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Item 1.H - CalRecycle Program
	Item 2 - Certify Election Results Nov 2018
	Agenda Report
	Attachment
	Item 2 - Certify Election Results
	Certification
	Official Certified Results

	Blank Page

	Blank Page

	Item 3 - Separation Findings
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Item 4 - License Agreement for Wireless Installation on Public Structures
	Item 5 - Proposed Tobacco Retailer License
	Blank Page




